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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kontafarma
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to
you the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
was approximately HK$809.1 million (2022: approximately HK$894.1
million), representing a decrease of approximately 9.5% as
compared to the previous year. The loss for the year of the Group
was approximately HK$61.1 million (2022: approximately HK$52.8
million). The basic loss per share amounted to approximately
HK$0.52 cent (2022: approximately HK$0.74 cent).

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in December 2018. The
Company considers stable and sustainable returns to our
shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain the dividend
policy to achieve such goal.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board would take into account the Group's
results of operations, earnings performance, cashflows, financial
condition, future prospects, as well as statutory and regulatory
restrictions on the payment of dividends, and other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

Whilst the Board will review from time to time for determination on
proposed dividend with the above factors taken into account, there
can be no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period.
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Adhering to the people-oriented philosophy, the Group extensively
recruits talents from different fields, treasures our staff as our
cornerstone, insists on unity within the Group and values internal
care and communication. By actively putting the subjective initiative
of our staff into play with care and soul, the Group continuously
enhances team cohesion and realizes complementary advantages
and sincere cooperation.

During the new era of development, the Group will focus on the
target of universal health. On one hand, we look forward to the
national deployment on universal health and uphold market
orientation in our product research and development to benefit the
health of people. On the other hand, we strive to contribute to
universal health by offering quality service and create value for all
stakeholders. The Group will discharge its corporate responsibilities
to pave a new path for promoting health, join hands with various
parties and forge ahead for the health of people nationwide.

OUTLOOK

The year of 2024 remains a challenging year for the pharmaceutical
business of the Group. On one hand, with the impact on the
change in demand and supply of the market environment, certain
products of the Group will face a fiercer price competition
inevitably. On the other hand, the Group will step up its efforts on
promoting the research and development of new products and
enriching the product mix to consolidate the market share of the
Group's products, and thus creating new opportunities for earning
growth.

Based on macro market changes, the Group has formulated
targeted strategies, including the launch of online marketing and a
new round of products selection plan. With the synergistic effect
brought by these strategies, the Group’s pharmaceutical business
will strive for a moderate growth in 2024.
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Looking ahead to 2024, the Group's fitness business stands at the
forefront of an optimistic and dynamic fitness landscape. The
positive trajectory and outlook for the year ahead provides an
opportunity for the Group to capitalise on emerging trends while
solidifying what we do best — offering superior fitness and yoga
experiences.

The Group’s fitness business will continue to aim for sustainable
year-on-year growth in new member sales and acquisition, personal
training and other ancillary revenue streams via the leveraging of
innovative marketing strategies and more personalised offerings.

Targeted efforts in attracting new members on a broader scale, a
carefully crafted member retention strategy, and a proactive
exploration of franchise opportunities, will be pivotal in shaping our
success and growth trajectory in future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our shareholders, customers and suppliers for their continuous
support to the Group. | would also like to express the Group's
appreciation for the contributions of the members of the Board and
all staff.

Bai Pingyan
Chairman

28 March 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s continuing
operations mainly included (i) manufacturing and sales of
prescription drugs, including chemical drugs and prescribed
traditional Chinese medicines in the PRC; and (ii) operating of
fitness centres and provision of consultation services for fitness and
health activities, and operating of franchise business for royalty fee
income.

The Group was engaged in the business of sales of laboratory
related products. The disposal of such business was completed on
29 July 2022 and such business was presented as discontinued
operation for the year ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Continuing Operations

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's revenue and
gross profit amounted to approximately HK$809.1 million and
HK$471.3 million (2022: approximately HK$894.1 million and
HK$506.2 million) respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 9.5% and 6.9% as compared with last year. The
decrease in revenue and gross profit was mainly attributable to the
following reasons:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

—  For the pharmaceutical business segment, i) due to the adverse
impact caused by the medical insurance policy adjustment in
Mainland China, the revenue and gross profit from one of the
main products of Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group., Ltd.* ([F
F#EEEE AR A R]) (“Tongfang Pharmaceutical”) decreased
significantly; ii) Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
(BERFELBEAERNFR) (“Chongging Kangle”) suffered a
decline in revenue and gross profit due to shrinking customer
demand; iii) the Group completed the disposal of its entire
equity interest held in Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (BEAAER K RBEEEEFRE QA
(“Shaanxi Life Care”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Shaanxi
Life Care Group”) on 9 May 2023 (“Disposal Date"”), thus the
revenue and gross profit of Shaanxi Life Care Group as of the
Disposal Date decreased as compared to that of the previous
year; and

— In respect of the fitness business segment, the Group’s fitness
business in Singapore has gradually recovered from the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic and has significantly improved,
which has partially offset the negative impact of the above-
mentioned pharmaceutical business segment.

The Group's net loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$61.1 million (2022: net loss of approximately
HK$109.7 million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$48.6 million as compared with the corresponding period of
2022. Basic loss per share was approximately HK$0.52 cent (2022:
loss per share of approximately HK$1.52 cent). Under unfavorable
circumstances with a decrease in both revenue and gross profit and,
the increase in expected credit losses on receivables, the
performance of the Group has improved mainly due to the one-
time gain of approximately HK$110.5 million from the disposal of its
entire equity interest held in Shaanxi Life Care.

Annual General Meeting in 2023

TEC=FRRAFREG
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Discontinued Operation

SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (H7 B {8 (3L ) £¥ AT B R
~7A]) (“SPF") and its wholly-owned subsidiary, SPF (Suzhou)
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (Hf B & (/M) £ 1T H R A &)
(collectively as “SPF Group”), is principally engaged in the sales of
laboratory related products. On 6 April 2022, Tongfang
Pharmaceutical, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Shenzhen Waranty Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (FYI T ERFEE
EEEABRZAR]) (“Shenzhen Waranty”), a controlling shareholder of
the Company and SPF entered into an equity transfer agreement,
pursuant to which Tongfang Pharmaceutical sold 55.43% equity
interest in SPF held by it to Shenzhen Waranty. Such transaction
was duly passed by the independent shareholders of the Company
by way of poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on 20
June 2022.

On 29 July 2022, the SPF Group was disposed of and presented as
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AN EXEERARAFBZEERE
Production equipment of
Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd*

AN EXEERRATDZEERE

Production equipment of Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd*

e a0
BEXK

BE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HIEEE K
SEEHEFRAMEND B AL607.1HE
BILMAGT 2B BB T(Z T —F : 497229
BEBILM2228EE7T) - R D R T#
#916.0%M10.5% c EBREFELAT : )ERFP
Bl BRI AREBROTFEE BA
BETEER —HERB TR ) ABEE
FERAT  EERLHEEBEFHTRER
mIE: RiRARESER_ZE=_=F1
ALBHE HEZHERAZKWAMERY
BEFHA TR -

BE_ZT-_=F+_-_A=+—HIEEE K
EEBHESDEFRFTRENC0.6EEE
T(ZEZZF  H83FEEL)  WE AR
RAZZARF#FENR_ZT-_=FHANA
HEBR PR E66% I - BIS— X IERELD
110.5BEHBIT @B T WAMERN TR X
FEUW G IE R TR HA(E B B 1818 15 2R M N F &2
2,

BUSINESS REVIEW

Pharmaceutical Business

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue and gross profit
of the Group’s pharmaceutical business were approximately
HK$607.1 million and HK$467.2 million (2022: approximately
HK$722.9 million and HK$522.2 million) respectively, representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 16.0% and 10.5%. The
main reasons for the decline are as follows: i) due to the adverse
impact caused by the medical insurance policy adjustment in
Mainland China, the sales of one of the main products of Tongfang
Pharmaceutical dropped significantly; ii) under the weak
macroeconomic condition, Chongging Kangle experienced a decline
in sales due to shrinking customer demand; and iii) Shaanxi Life
Care Group, which was disposed of on 9 May 2023, witnessed a
decrease in revenue and gross profit as of the Disposal Date as
compared to that of previous year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the performance of the
pharmaceutical business of the Group recorded a profit of
approximately HK$69.6 million (2022: approximately HK$8.3 million).
The significant increase in profit was mainly due to the one-off gain
of approximately HK$110.5 million from the disposal of 66% equity
interest in Shaanxi Life Care by Tongfang Pharmaceutical on 9 May
2023, which offset the adverse impact brought by the decrease in
revenue and gross profit and the increase in expected credit losses
on receivables.
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Tongfang Pharmaceutical is principally engaged in the
production and sales of chemical generic drugs. It has a
preparation workshop of 30,000 square meters in Yanging
District, Beijing. Its key products are prescription drugs and its
therapeutic areas mainly include drugs for local anesthesia and
gynecological purposes. For the year ended 31 December
2023, Tongfang Pharmaceutical recorded revenue and gross
profit of approximately RMB462.7 million and RMB413.8
million (2022: approximately RMB453.5 million and RMB412.4
million), respectively. The revenue recorded a year-on-year
increase of approximately 2.0% as compared with that of last
year, while the gross profit was basically stable as compared
with the corresponding period of last year.

At present, Tongfang Pharmaceutical is facing pressure due to
the adjustment of medical insurance policies and the
emergence of new competitive products. In response, it is
actively seeking countermeasures.

Chongging Kangle is principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sales of active pharmaceutical
ingredients (“AP1”) and API intermediate in Chongqging
Changshou Chemical Industrial Park. For the year ended 31
December 2023, Chongging Kangle recorded revenue and
gross profit of approximately RMB72.7 million and RMB9.0
million (2022: approximately RMB117.2 million and RMB29.6
million) respectively, representing a decrease of approximately
38.0% and 69.7% as compared with last year.

Constrained by the weak macroeconomic environment in
2023, Chongging Kangle faced a decrease in customer
demand, in particular a sharp decrease in its export demand,
leading to a significant decrease in its performance. Currently,
Chongging Kangle is actively seeking new customers and
orders, and exploring open new markets to strive for an
enhancement in its performance in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Shaanxi Life Care Group is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of Chinese medicine products. On 13
April 2023, Tongfang Pharmaceutical, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with Ping
An Tsumura Inc.* (FZZFBRAF]) (“Ping An Tsumura”),
pursuant to which Tongfang Pharmaceutical sold its 66%
equity interest in Shaanxi Life Care to Ping An Tsumura.
Shaanxi Life Care Group was disposed of on 9 May 2023.

As of 9 May 2023, Shaanxi Life Care Group recorded revenue
and gross profit of approximately RMB21.6 million and
RMB9.7 million (2022: approximately RMB62.3 million and
RMB26.8 million) respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 65.4% and 63.6% as compared with last year.

The revenue of the Group’s fitness business for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$202.0 million (2022:
approximately HK$171.2 million), which includes royalty fee income
of approximately HK$39.2 million (2022: approximately HK$37.8
million). The results of the Group’s fitness business for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was loss of approximately HK$81.5
million (2022: approximately HK$101.3 million).

The favourable increase in revenue was partially offset by the
negative impact brought by i) the increase in salaries and
commission; ii) the decrease in government grants and subsidies and
rental rebates related to COVID-19 pandemic and iii) the increase in
expected credit losses on the receivables of royalty fee income.
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The year 2023 was a key year for the recovery of the Group's
fitness business. It has achieved remarkable revenue growth and
narrowed losses with high-quality customer experience and various
fitness services. The Group’s yoga brand of “Yoga Edition” launched
at the end of 2022 has also made progress, and the management
will continue to push forward the development of the yoga
business.

Discontinued Operation

On 29 July 2022, the SPF Group wad disposed of and presented as
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

The Group’s capital expenditure, daily operations and investments
during the year ended 31 December 2023 were mainly funded by
cash generated from its operations, net proceeds from disposal of
subsidiaries and loans from principal bankers.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group maintained bank balances and
cash reserves of approximately HK$77.7 million (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$122.6 million), all of which were cash and cash
equivalents.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had outstanding borrowings
repayable within one year of approximately HK$ 39.5 million and
outstanding borrowings repayable after one year of approximately
HK$ 12.8 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$158.8
million and HK$103.2 million). As at 31 December 2023, 46.4% of
the Group’s outstanding borrowings were denominated in Renminbi
("RMB”) and 53.6% in Singapore dollars (“SGD"). Approximately
34.0% of the Group’s outstanding borrowings were charged with
interest at floating rates while the remainder were at fixed rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The gearing ratio (total borrowings over total assets) of the Group
as at 31 December 2023 was as follows:

2023 2022
—_=E_= —_E-

HK$°000 HK$'000

TH&x FHEIT

EE®E Total borrowings 52,347 261,925

BEE Total assets 1,727,335 2,120,443

BEAGELE Gearing ratio 3.0% 12.4%
B EERBXR Financial Management and Policy

AEBMBERREESATERYH 2 M5
RERERE AEEZBRS T2 EEK
MZTEERR S TIAERRBDESRE
AR S R AR

SN R B L B

AEBEZEBERURPE R INE - H KX
ZHR5  HEZEESREENARY - #
g R ((ET)) KRBT E A& H
BYEZABIMNERR IHNRTEREEZE
HHBEBREERER - AT - ARAEKEZEHE
MBHmERAETTESY - MABTERINERE
B BN EE AR S SRR B 8%
BEREINEEMELZINERR (T IEEK
Bm|) -

The Group's financial policy aims at minimising the Group's financial
risk exposure. Our policy is not to engage in speculative derivative
financial transactions and not to invest current capital in financial
products with significant risk.

Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC and
Singapore and most of its transactions, related working capital and
borrowings are denominated in RMB, SGD, United States dollar
("US$”) and HK$. The Group closely monitors such foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant currency
exposure if necessary. However, since the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$ which is different from its
functional currency, the Group would inevitably face foreign
exchange exposure, whether positive or negative, arising from
translating the accounts to its presentation currency.
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EEER Pledge of Assets
RZTZZ=F+=ZA=+—H AKEBEZE  As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank borrowings of
TR E 428,824,000 L (ZE = —F : 4 approximately HK$28,824,000 (2022: approximately
206,555,000 7T) R E & {F%Y1,076,000# HK$206,555,000) and lease liabilities of approximately
TT(ZZE == : 49661,000787T) B LA T 5 1H HK$1,076,000 (2022: approximately HK$661,000) were secured by
B{EHEM the following:
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
BFNEEY Buildings and structures 1,835 81,558
AW Investment property — 37,760
FREEE Right-of-use assets 4,454 32,945
EEIRE Construction in progress — 136,843
IRITAE AR Bank balance 129 112
6,418 289,218
BEREFXREBERRE Material Capital Commitments and Investments
REEBFATEREE The Group had the following capital commitments:

2023 2022
—_E_-= —E -4

HK$’000 HK$'000
TER T

DETHERR G A ISR ZEMAE Z  Capital commitments contracted for but

BAREHE not provided in the consolidated
financial statements:
— HBEVE BEIEHE — Acquisition of property, plant and

equipment 16,883 93,075
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 720 (2022: 922)
employees; and the staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments and
retirement benefits scheme contributions) of the Group’s continuing
operations were approximately HK$164,964,000 (31 December
2022: approximately HK$159,347,000). The Group maintains a
policy of paying competitive remuneration packages, and employees
are also rewarded salary and bonus on a performance related basis.
In addition, awarded shares may be granted to eligible employees
pursuant to the terms of the share award scheme of the Company.
The purpose of the scheme is to provide incentives to the selected
employees to contribute to the Group and to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees, and attract and retain
human resources that are valuable to the Group.

*  For identification purpose only

17
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Tongfang Pharmaceutical be recognised as

BHEXERERMERTREREEE]
Tongfang Pharmaceutical be recognised as
“Beijing Integrity Brand Enterprise*”

AT BEXERERMERT TAKLER]
Tongfang Pharmaceutical be recognised as
“Beijing Workers Pioneer*”

“Beijing Specialised, Special and New Small

and Medium Enterprises*”

EREBEMEAR (R
ME

A e ]
ESAW, myIA
U B

Brm A RS
SE R R
S Ty

[R5 SR FERTE R
[ZR2EEREC=REE]
Tongfang Pharmaceutical be recognised as
“Safety Production Standardization Level
Three Enterprise*”

EERLERT
[BEWERERBEL ] FE
Chongging Kangle be awarded with
the honor of “Trade Secret Protection
Demonstration Unit*”

[F77 BE AR
[HER AT #E @ (RS EE )
Tongfang Pharmaceutical be awarded
with “Beijing New Technology and
New Product (Service) Certificate*”
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OVERALL APPROACH, STRATEGY, REPORTING
SCOPE AND REPORTING PRINCIPLES OF
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

About this Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
aims to illustrate the system establishment and performance of
Kontafarma China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we") in fulfilling its environmental and
social responsibilities, and is also published on the respective
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.kontafarma.com.hk).

Reporting Scope

This Report covers the data within the reporting period from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”) and
makes relevant disclosures in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting
Guide”) as set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company considers that we
have complied with the mandatory disclosure requirements and the
“comply or explain” provisions as set out in the ESG Reporting
Guide for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The current reporting scope of this report covers the following
principal businesses of the Group:

(1) the manufacturing and sales of prescription drugs and active
pharmaceutical ingredients in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") (the “Pharmaceutical Business”). The major
operating subsidiaries of the Pharmaceutical Business include
Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.* (5 22 EE AR
~A]) (“Tongfang Pharmaceutical”) and Chongging Kangle
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EEFELEEERE Q7))
(“Chongging Kangle”); and

(2)  Operation of fitness centers and provision of consultation
services for fitness and health activities in Singapore (“Fitness
Business”). The principal operating subsidiaries of which
include True Fitness Pte. Ltd. and True Yoga Pte. Ltd..
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For the Pharmaceutical Business, Beijing Huakong Health Technology
Co., Ltd* (GERFEEFEERFEABMRAE]) had no actual operation
during the Reporting Period; at the same time, Shaanxi
Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (PR ¢ f= f5 %
¥ B[R AT (“Shaanxi Life Care”) was disposed during the
Reporting Period, therefore subsidiaries without operation or
disposed subsidiaries will be excluded from the reporting scope for
the Reporting Period. For Fitness Business, the fitness centers
operated under the franchise business model in Taiwan will no
longer be covered in the reporting scope of this Report.

This Report summarises our environmental, social and governance
("ESG") performance during the Reporting Period, and covers our
management policies, mechanisms and measures for environmental
protection, emission reduction, safe workplace, staff training and
drills, supply chain management and community investment and
engagement during the Reporting Period. We are fully committed to
operating in a manner that is economically, socially and
environmentally sustainable while balancing the interests of our
stakeholders and bringing positive impacts to the society.

This Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
and based on the following four reporting principles — materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency.

Materiality: We have collected, through the materiality assessment
questionnaires, and reviewed the views of internal management and
stakeholders to identify the relevant ESG issues and assess their
relevance and materiality, so as to determine the reporting scope
and the required information for the preparation and verification of
the ESG report.

Quantitative: The ESG key performance indicators disclosed in this
Report are supported by quantitative data and measurable criteria.
The sources of all applicable data, calculation tools, methodologies,
references and conversion factors used are disclosed in the
presentation of emission data, where applicable.
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Balance: This Report provides a complete, fair, clear and
comparable overview of the Group’s ESG policies and performance.

Consistency: To facilitate stakeholders’ comparisons of the ESG
performance of the Group from year to year, the same reporting
and calculation methodologies are used as reasonably practicable in
the preparation of this Report and material changes in the
methodologies are set out in the relevant sections in detail. The
Group will also add a note in the corresponding contents of the
report to indicate any changes that may affect the comparison with
previous reports.

The Group understands that ESG are crucial to the sustainable
development of an enterprise. The Group has established an ESG
management framework with clearly defined responsibilities to
ensure top-down and effective implementation of the ESG policies.
The Board is responsible for overseeing the effective implementation
of the Group’s ESG policies, including determining the Group's
overall ESG initiatives, understanding and controlling ESG-related
risks, as well as supervising and leading the executive committee
(the "Executive Committee”), the management and relevant
functional departments in formulating and implementing relevant
policies and measures, directing the management to monitor the
effectiveness of the ESG risk management and internal control
systems, and regularly reviewing the progress of relevant
performance and objectives. The Board approves and supervises the
preparation of the ESG Report and formulates its approach. The
working group will be responsible for the specific preparation of the
ESG Report in accordance with the instructions of the Board and
the Executive Committee.

The Group has established a strong ESG governance structure and
implemented the concept of sustainable development in its daily
work, so as to achieve sustainable growth and the foundation of
long-term success. The structure consists of three parts:

The decision-making level (the Board), the organisation level (the
Executive Committee, the management) and the executive level (the
working group, the functional departments, the subsidiaries of the
Group), which are responsible for different ESG functions and work,
respectively.
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The Board is responsible for:

o developing the ESG management framework, approach,
strategy, priorities and objectives;

° overseeing the Group’s overall ESG risks and its relevant
objectives regularly, and reviewing the relevant progress and
performance;

° ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk management

and internal control systems are in place;

o supervising and leading the Executive Committee, the
management and relevant departments to conduct the ESG-
related work; and

° approving the disclosure in the ESG Report.

The Executive Committee and the management are
responsible for:

o developing and implementing relevant policies and measures in
accordance with the ESG approaches, strategies, priorities and
objectives set by the Board;

° regularly assessing and reviewing the ESG-related progress,
performance, target progress, risks and opportunities, and
reporting to the Board,;

o providing guidance on the implementation of the ESG policies
and measures to the functional departments and the
subsidiaries of the Group;

o reporting the ESG-related progress and performance to the
Board; and

° reviewing the ESG Report and submitting it to the Board for
approval.
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The working group is responsible for:

o integrating information and data collected by functional
departments and subsidiaries of the Group relating to the
Group's ESG performance; and

° engaging in the preparation of the ESG Report in accordance
with the instructions of the Board and the Executive
Committee, and reporting to the Executive Committee on the
work progress.

The functional departments and the subsidiaries of the Group
are responsible for:

° coordinating and implementing specific ESG policies, objectives
and measures;

o reporting the ESG-related work to the management;

° collecting information and data relating to the Group’s ESG
performance; and

o coordinating with the working group in preparing the ESG
Report.

Governance Approach and Strategy

The Board formulated and implemented a clear and prioritised ESG
management approach and initiative that is closely aligned with the
Company’s overall business strategy. The Executive Committee and
the management are responsible for the formulation of policies and
guidelines, and the allocation of budgets for the ESG activities and
projects in achieving sustainable development. Our vision is to
promote sustainable economies, build a solid foundation and a
bright future for the Group and enhance the value for business
partners of the Group and shareholders of the Company. Our
strategy is to comply with all environmental requirements applicable
to its scope of business and to continuously improve our
environmental management of every aspect towards the industry
best practice.
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Stakeholder Engagement

The management is committed to incorporating the ESG elements
into the strategic assessment of daily operation, and has considered
the long-term impact of stakeholders on our ESG issues. We have
appointed internal functional department and engaged external
advisor to assist the management of the Group in reviewing our
operation, in order to identify the relevant ESG issues and assess
their importance to our business and stakeholders’ interests.

The Group values the intelligence gained from the stakeholders’
insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group’s business
activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are
important to the business and established various communication
channels. The following table provides an overview of the Group's
key stakeholders, and various platforms and communication
methods that are used to reach, listen and respond to them.

BEAR

Communication methods

Key stakeholders

Expectations and requirements

RBEERFHE
== . S IHEm . BIEH
o HFBLREAM s  BHERZ
s  EXIERE e BIFM
s RERBEXZE o  BIIKEE
o NEREBLF
Employees o Labour rights and interests o Employee activities
o Benefits and welfare ° Performance appraisal
o Career development o Employee handbook
o Health and occupational safety o Trainings and drills
o Internal emails
SIBEERFHE
REERR e  KREMF e BREZE
e  RIFNGEEREM e HHRFERE
o RAEERERAEREE o NS E I
J YNGRk b
. BIBE
Investors/shareholders o Return on investment o Shareholders’ meetings
o Good corporate governance system o Interim and annual reports

o Transparency and disclosure of corporate e

information

Announcements and circulars
o Official company website
. Emails
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TERGE HEEER BBEARR
Key stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication methods
B B . B RBER E HA B R
AR E K . BIThREERME EBER
. EEAR 2HARFA
Government/regulatory o Compliance with laws and regulations Regular reporting
authorities/legal team o Fulfillment of corporate legal Laws and regulations

responsibilities

Global compliance platform

o Regulatory compliance
P REERF s BEEMERY [SEEE]
. RERE BFEM  BERELBAERAREN
s  SEER EPmEERAL
e  RBEE
Customers and potential e Quality products and services Business visits

customers o Timely delivery Email, telephone and
o Reasonable price communication applications
o Value of services Customer satisfaction survey
IR BB o [EEMEE RS
. REMT K BFEM - ERELBAERRER
HEm KRR

Suppliers/business o Payment schedule Business visits
partners . Stable demand Email, telephone and
communication applications
Supplier performance evaluation
T [ . IRIBIRE NSIN=WF b
e HEFM R
. RBER BIHRTIES
Community o Environmental protection Official company website
o Community contribution Community involvement

o Economic development

Staff volunteering activities
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EEMFAM Materiality Assessment
REBCEBTINFZRTMHERE LS RE The Group has assessed the materiality and importance of the ESG
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aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Formulation of industry benchmark

o The relevant ESG areas were identified by the Group through
the review of relevant ESG reports of local and international
industry peers.

o The importance of each ESG area was determined based on
the recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide as well as
the risks on the Group through internal discussion of the
management.

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder engagement

° The Group conducts questionnaire assessments on the key ESG
areas concerned by its key stakeholders above, so as to
identify all key and material ESG issues that they consider to
be material to the Group’s business development.

o All the key and material ESG-related issues were prioritized base
on the preliminary materiality assessment result. The Group
takes into account the materiality to stakeholders and
materiality to business in prioritizing the issues.

Step 3: Validation — Determining material issues

° Assessment, identification and prioritization were made based
on the above questionnaire results, and the Executive
Committee determined and confirmed all key and material
ESG issues and areas that are important to the business
development in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide.

Based on our assessment, this Report provides a summary disclosure
of the Pharmaceutical Business and the Fitness Business. The
following five ESG issues are identified as our key aspects.
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Key ESG issues

1.

tEER BAREERSRER

Corporate governance, risk
management and compliance
monitoring

NEEEZENRRENYD R EE
Reasons for identifying as material issues and risks involved

s RUGCEEARGPEREKENANERR  BEREXKIZAE - BR
TEETHBER AHNREACERTS TORFREE A
ERUREREE-

e EREERLERY REZENER - ANREEAHEER-

e AREEREEEMRFTREZEML BERIINHEBBRAINEAR
FEBRTRBERIGREARNIER -

o Good corporate governance is an inherent requirement for the robust
operation of an enterprise and the foundation of success. Ensuring
that the enterprise complies with relevant regulations is beneficial to
enhancing the competitiveness and reputation of the enterprise in
the market and creating long-term value for the enterprise.

o Risk management is the foundation for the steady and healthy
development of an enterprise. It is conducive to the sustainable
development of enterprises.

o Compliance monitoring reduces the risk of legal liability, regulatory
penalties and goodwill loss due to non-compliance, and continues to
play a good role in corporate governance.

2.

H
So
mht
f‘
Pl
Y
il

Product liability and quality

e EmBEERESRMCENRLUBFHNEBER AEEXRLETRF
NEBLER - FEETSAMS A& BEE-

. ERUERHBRETARERNBEER KRS HE B E#IE N -
REMPTEHBAZREAEENEEHEE -

o Product liability and quality are the core competitiveness and strategic
goals of an enterprise. An enterprise aims to survive with quality
and develop with reputation. Only enterprises with quality will have
market, benefit and development.

o The relevant requirements and penalties for product sampling
inspection and substandard products are increasing, and it is
essential for the Group to ensure that the products meet the
relevant requirements.
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3. BERRERBEMERE . IR EZERIIRE T - MEETRE IR - EPEUMEFE - Eise R -
EPRCEEBLEIE RBRACEGERTN HEEREREEEZH
52

e RBURREEBRUEETHRAFREUTHE
(1) BPRARERNSOMEENA  BEEELSENAN
(2) HRAFIWNLE EE BELEERIBNRE:

() AR AREBEKEERBEBER X FHLE  RIFENE -

e  AEFENMERER AIUBREELEMNER  RBSQBENE -

. SEBRREBETIEEERRREFRERNER  ZNHMBBEMPE
SHEIEER - BRRERIEREREINE  BRETERHENBEN

3. Energy and exhaust emission o Energy is the source of enterprise development. The strengthening
management of energy management, energy conservation and consumption
reduction can help enterprises optimise process and enhance
comprehensive competitiveness, which are essential to their long-

term development.

o The establishment of an energy management system is beneficial for
the Group to achieve its objectives as follows:

(1) to help the Company save and use energy reasonably and
reduce production and operation costs;

(2) to ensure the Company’'s safe, continuous and stable
production;

(3) to help the Company obtain economic and environmental
benefits supported by national energy conservation and
emission reduction policies.

o Reasonable planning and use of energy can reduce energy
consumption per unit product and improve economic efficiency.

o The Group strictly complies with and actively responds to the
requirements of environmental protection laws and regulations,
focuses on strengthening the centralized treatment of exhaust gas
of pharmaceutical enterprises, and strictly controls the emission of
exhaust gas (including the emission of formaldehyde and dust) in
workshops.
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Key ESG issues

NHEERENRREND KK ER
Reasons for identifying as material issues and risks involved

4. REBEMEGEEIE e REHEMEENTEIETEFETHEENERNRRE -

e HMEFHENAEMEBEIUEDNREAZPREE  UREBER
EMBREAERE  RAEENS -

. BERORBREREE  EPRELAENEBENERNEE BN
RECENRLHEF  REFEENLBENE °

4. Procurement and supply chain o Procurement and supply chain management is the basic guarantee
management for timely completion of production.

o The reliability and flexibility of supplier delivery can help improve
customer satisfaction, reduce the total supply chain cost of the
enterprise, and improve production efficiency.

o Effective procurement and supply chain management helps to ensure
smooth production and product quality, and to improve the core
competitiveness of an enterprise and enhance its economic benefits.

5. AT EBRER o AT ERRERZLEHBUEANERERASTARENERE
E RErERENE BROUECEERNENRRE  HEENE
BREZERANEDIER SEALFRIENSTENAT #FE -

5. Talent management and o Talent management and development is an essential element for an

development

enterprise’s strategic human capital management plan, and is the
primary resource and the basic guarantee for enterprise
development, which greatly promotes the development of an
enterprise. The Group shall maintain and expand its high-quality
talent pool.




30

FEZEFEREEAER AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

R HERERRE

s K

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT -

BERR

AEEEZEREBORAE BHTEXHE
BER - AEENEE - RALERRB L
ETEST BUHAMEIBERERSES
K e JFI—E AR T - BB
BERRBBRE R HEEMEMERR
BHEE - AN RAIRERENERHIE
BY—BZTHBREREZE2MTHERE
VEESTHBETBR  UBERETHNE
2o TRBASBKFINERBR

o

EMHWER

+

Objectives and Review

While developing its business, the Group is committed to improving
its business operation management. The Group’s operations are
generally based on the nature of production and service. Therefore,
the resources we use are mainly electricity and water. We always
aim to reduce emissions, reduce water consumption and cherish
resources, so as to reduce the impact on the surrounding
environment where we operate. At the same time, we have a
sound employment system to create a diverse, inclusive, healthy and
safe working environment, and maintain close communication with
employees to understand their needs. The table below summarises
our key objectives.

Our objectives

1. BRSEARR °

1. Strict compliance with regulations o

BEAHR — HREBNEBEENTSERBOERER

BEASE — RTAXAGEEERE  HUSROXXUE

Legal compliance — ensuring that the Group’s business operations
are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Ethics — adhering to ethical standards of business integrity and
establishing a culture of compliance

2. mERE . mER — BREMERRE  TEEFPHEX
e EmZE: — HMREMNAREFEREX
2. Quality assurance o Product quality — ensuring good product quality and meeting
customers’ requirements
o Product safety — ensuring that products meet safety standards and
requirements
3. SFERE e IRIRER — THERSHERBRZ2H  BEROEENRREFE W
NEREIR ~ A BE RSO A EE A B B8 RE SR 4
o RIRBKRE — THRIEEEHRIERE(CHTE - WHTER
B L B B8 - N AR A R T 4 e
3. Environmental protection o Environmental management — regularly monitoring various

environmental parameters to minimise the relevant environmental
impact, committed to saving resources, reducing emissions and
reducing the generation of solid waste

Climate change strategy — regularly reviewing the Group’s approach
to climate change, and identifying risks and opportunities, and
relevant countermeasures
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Our objectives

SEA —BEMAEINSIRMEAR EFeEEFE I
BRITAANERERERR  YERAARBERLRIN XL
2T — REIRMUARF WRERENIIERER
Diversity and inclusion — Respecting the labour rights and human
rights of all employees, maintaining high ethical standards, clearly
stating human resources management policies and advocating an
inclusive culture within the company

Work safety — providing employees with a supportive, happy and
healthy working environment

4. PAA AT °
[ ]
4. People-oriented o
[ ]
5. B E .
5. Giving back to society o

MABHRMNERMEIR - BEKAHEM LR IRE
Leveraging our expertise and resources to serve the communities in
which we operate

HWTZESNEEEERSRBHEBREAA
REMENREETE - RFIRE - HLEREAR
AREELRRERR  YRAEZSER -EF
Y B REABRETERN L L AR E R R
RBCEITRZ - R - EFSRRHEEREE
ERRE HEMEAZBELEARETEREY
Rz - BEEXBN TG ER  EXSRHEWT
HRE - e REAEMEE LS EERS
BRERR  HEREREB TIF - RREBR
FIsEFHRE e RERBSHEIINHE
RE » NABMERAEMAZRTAE - B
ReBaRka @8 EzAR  UKE
AEASENXEGRREBEHEIIRE &£

ehERBRE -

The Executive Committee and the management determine and
review the progress of ESG objectives and provide feedback through
regular reports provided by the relevant responsible persons of each
business and report to the Board. The Board reviews the
achievement of objectives and reviews the progress and
effectiveness of related matters. Meanwhile, the Board will continue
to monitor the risks brought by these material ESG issues to the
Group. As the business continues to develop, the Board has been
paying attention to new ESG-related issues and will continue to
oversee ESG-related work to keep abreast of the latest disclosure
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange.
The Company also ensures that all departments work closely
together to achieve the objectives of operational compliance and
social responsibility, and will continue to formulate corresponding
ESG objectives in response to the Group’s business development.
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With the aim of reducing gas emissions, the Group regularly
conducts exhaust gas monitoring in accordance with the
requirements of various emission standards, and ensures that the
concentration of exhaust gas emissions meets the emission
standards stipulated in government regulations, such as the Emission
Standard of Air Pollutants for Catering Industry* (CZ &R K RIT 4
YPETAZ #E)), the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boilers*
(CGRIE R RS2 YEEMIZEZ£)) and the Integrated Emission Standard
of Air Pollutants* ((RKF)5EYEE BEMIZ®)), etc. Relevant
emission reduction works were carried out during the Reporting
Period to achieve the goal.

In response to the promotion of alternative energy use by the PRC
government, we have continuously implemented a solar energy
power generation project (the “Solar Energy Generation Project”) in
our plant in Beijing. In this project, solar photovoltaic modules were
installed, covering an area of over 30,000 square feet and fulfilling
the daily energy consumption requirement of our plant in Beijing.
Any surplus solar power would be sold to the plants nearby. The
Solar Energy Generation Project effectively promotes the
development of alternative energy and contributes to a better
environment by reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

Meanwhile, Tongfang Pharmaceutical has regularly carried out
various energy-saving actions, eliminated heavily-polluted production
lines and related facilities and used natural gas as fuel to reduce
emissions. The exhaust gas generated by Tongfang Pharmaceutical
in its workshop during the production process of pharmaceutical
preparations mainly includes dust, exhaust gas, chemical reagent
volatilisation of laboratories, boiler exhaust gas, etc. Tongfang
Pharmaceutical has regularly carried out the monitoring of the
concentration of exhaust gas emissions and replaced relevant
facilities, such as installing electrostatic fume purifier facilities and
replacing low-nitrogen burners. In accordance with the requirements
of the pollutant discharge permit, it engaged a qualified inspection
company to carry out self-monitoring of pollutant emissions, so as
to reduce emissions and ensure that exhaust gas emissions are
controlled in accordance with the total amount permitted by the
pollutant discharge permit.
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The safety and environmental protection committee of Chongging
Kangle led various departments to implement energy conservation
and emission reduction, and gradually started to implement various
energy conservation and emission reduction work, including the
purchase of a new set of exhaust gas treatment equipment, the
application of the equipment with high energy efficiency to
eliminate obsolete machines, the centralised production to reduce
the use of packaging and forklifts, and the strengthened inspections
to deal with abnormal situations in a timely manner and to
completely eradicate environmental pollution incidents. During the
Reporting Period, Chongging Kangle continued using the renovated
temporal storage sites for hazardous wastes and waste gas
collection and treatment facilities at the sewage station, which
effectively collected and controlled the fugitive emissions of
temporal storage sites for hazardous wastes, and processed it
together with the waste gas from the sewage station treatment
pool and then gas emission is required to meet the standard. At the
same time, the waste gas treatment system of the sewage station
has been upgraded to level-three deep treatment device of
“condensation + water absorption + activated carbon adsorption”,
so as to further reduce exhaust gas (such as formaldehyde)
concentration emissions, effectively ensuring the up-to-standard
emission of the relevant exhaust gas. In addition, during the
Reporting Period, Chongging Kangle increased the pre-treatment of
the front-end of production of exhaust gas, the total amount of
exhaust gas emissions thereby decreased.

During the Reporting Period, since the emissions, such as nitrogen
oxides (“NOx"), sulphur dioxide (“SO,”) and dust (“PM") and
greenhouse gases emitted directly, produced from the
Pharmaceutical Business were not significant, a decision was made
not to disclose such information. In 2023, indirect carbon dioxide
("CO,") emission from electricity consumption was approximately
1,057 tonnes (2022: 2,110 tonnes). The intensity of CO, generated
per person from electricity consumption was 2.49 tonnes (2022:
3.25 tonnes). The decrease in overall emissions was due to the
disposal of Shaanxi Life Care and the decrease in electricity
consumption of Chongging Kangle in 2023. For the reasons of the
decrease in electricity consumption, please refer to the section “Use
of Resources” below.

During the period, the Group classified wastes, aims to reduce the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, and treated the
discharge of all wastes in strict accordance with laws and
regulations.
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Chemical waste, hazardous chemicals and clinical waste (including
reagent bottles, disposed drugs and experimental liquid waste) are
the major hazardous wastes of the Pharmaceutical Business. We
start with the design of process research and development,
strengthen material recovery and application, and negotiate with
suppliers to reduce or reuse the packaging of raw materials to
reduce waste generation. We centralise the handling of all
hazardous wastes in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations. All hazardous wastes have to go through detoxification
treatments by qualified vendors before disposal. During the
Reporting Period, Tongfang Pharmaceutical has completed the self-
monitoring and environmental impact assessment and acceptance of
the pollutant discharge permit, improved the existing environmental
protection facilities, and carried out green technical transformation
on plant equipment and process flow. Tongfang Pharmaceutical’s
hazardous waste management has been renovated and hazardous
waste storage site administrators have been employed to manage
hazardous waste specially, while a more standardised and safer
environmental protection process was implemented and addresses
potential environmental hazards.

In terms of solid waste, Tongfang Pharmaceutical has fully
implemented waste classification during the Reporting Period,
strengthened the publicity and education of employees, and signed
classified waste disposal agreements with local legal waste disposal
companies to dispose of solid waste and domestic waste generated
every day, which has complied with the Regulations on the
Management of Domestic Waste in Beijing* ({1t R £ E L E 1B
1&f1)) for proper waste disposal and removal; Chongging Kangle
has also set up reasonable and standardized temporary storerooms
for the disposal of domestic waste and solid waste respectively, so
as to reduce the water content of distillation residue and sludge
and reduce the disposal cost. Chongging Kangle has improved the
production process, adopted clean production and selected fine
materials, improved product quality and used long-life materials,
etc.,, in order to reduce the generation of solid waste from the
source.
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In 2023, Tongfang Pharmaceutical treated a total of 4.5 tonnes
(2022: 21 tonnes) of hazardous waste, including chemical waste
and hazardous chemicals. The chemical waste generated by
Tongfang Pharmaceutical mainly includes waste drugs, chemical
reagent waste and waste liquid that expired within the Reporting
Period; hazardous chemicals mainly include activated carbon, ink
cartridges, empty reagent bottles produced in daily office operation
and waste organic solvents produced in production process. The
powder injection workshop of Tongfang Pharmaceutical has been
producing drug certification batches since the commencement of
relevant certification work. As the certified batch of products cannot
be sold externally and can only be treated as hazardous waste after
expiration, the volume of chemical waste disposal in 2023
decreased significantly. Tongfang Pharmaceutical strives to carry out
partial harmless treatment before the expiration of that batch of
products.

The production base of Chongging Kangle generated approximately
673 tonnes of chemical waste in 2023 (2022: approximately 637
tonnes), representing a slight increase as compared to the same
period of last year. The local administration department has
strengthened the control of enterprise-specific pollutants. Due to the
change in the way of collecting pollutants, high-concentration
wastewater containing dichloromethane factors that originally
entered the water body was collected separately, and the
dichloromethane residual liquid after distillation and condensation
was all treated as hazardous waste disposal, resulting in a large
amount of hazardous waste disposal. Chongqing Kangle continued
to implement the following measures to reduce and control the
discharge of hazardous wastes:

—  Carrying out official inspections (e.g. National Medical Products
Administration of China, and U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (“FDA"), etc.) and multiple domestic and
foreign customer audits, and pushing forward clean
production and improvements on process technology, resulting
in significant improvements of product qualities and technical
indicators as well as substantial reductions in costs and
chemical wastes;

— Improving solvent recycling fixtures to increase the recycling of
distillation and condensation facilities and cooling water,
resulting in significant increase of solvent recovery rate and
effective reduction of chemical wastes emission;
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—  Adopting front-end collection of chemical wastes in batches
and applying distillation-concentration regime for highly
concentrated chemical wastes, which effectively lowered the
volume of emissions and processing costs;

— Using quinclorac by some external procurements to reduce its
production;

—  Engaging professional outsourcing companies to uniformly
recycle and dispose of hazardous wastes;

—  Signing disposal agreements with newly-hired hazardous waste
disposal units to accelerate treatment efficiency and thereby
reduce environmental risks; and

— Undergoing non-hazardous treatment and disposal.

Based on the total amount of hazardous waste generated by the
above, the intensity of hazardous waste generated per person per
year in the Pharmaceutical Business was approximately 1.59 tonnes
(intensity per person in 2022: approximately 1.02 tonnes). After the
sale of Shaanxi Life Care, the number of employees reduced but
hazardous waste did not decrease, resulting in an increase in
intensity per person.

The Pharmaceutical Business produced approximately 31 tonnes
(2022: approximately 200 tonnes) of non-hazardous wastes during
2023, including household and kitchen waste, general commercial
waste, pharmaceutical residues and other non-hazardous waste. Last
year, the main source of disclosure was the slag/coal-fired boiler
wastes after heating and dregs/wastes produced after extraction of
Chinese medicines in the course of the production process of
Shaanxi Life Care, a subsidiary engaged in planting, manufacturing
and distribution of Chinese medicines. During the Reporting Period,
non-hazardous waste was mainly from the above-mentioned
domestic and kitchen waste generated by Tongfang Pharmaceutical
and Chongging Kangle. The total amount of non-hazardous waste
dropped significantly due to the sale of Shaanxi Life Care, which
reduced its total volume of waste.



@ X

+

%ﬁ*ﬁA%%Fizﬂ%ﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁi
BOO7THE(ZE_—_FAHGEEE : £0.34
WE) o A7 EEXEE IJT@M&W%—;FT BB E
ﬁuﬁgﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁgﬂﬁgﬁﬁ

CBEFETERUREY EERIE il &
EEEY RADWNEEZEEYERS
KRR o

BALRTEXNEEREMELE 2 BERE
2V HEmERNERYHNEIZERS 2
B eBMRESETERY  RARSRK
mELNMHREZENLITEN  BAK
BRETHERBER -

HRREEBBREMTE  IEEERLRE
BERIEEREREHERY  RAEBKHEA
BAZER AERE BENEZEENZ
EEHER - RARESHE  #EEMEED
COBEMHAI727WE (=T = — 4 : £9804Hf) -
SABHRREEECO,MNIEMEE H2.561E
ZE -4 :3.06W8) - B EFHREMRLE
B » TEMRE_T - =FHR - i
TEMNREFPOLOABROHERBAAMEEET
PRFTEN - AR EBDNRERE - F26H
LATU%%@FHJ*ED °

—EZ=FF 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

g
¢ RIE - HERERBRE

& ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the period, the intensity of non-hazardous waste generated
per person was approximately 0.07 tonnes (intensity per person in
2022: approximately 0.34 tonnes). Taking into account the large
price fluctuations in the recyclable market and the advantages of
the treatment price and higher value for large volume, Tongfang
Pharmaceutical will collect and quantitatively process the above-
mentioned non-hazardous waste every year, and implement effective
recycling for non-hazardous waste disposal.

In addition to the above non-hazardous wastes produced by
Tongfang Pharmaceutical and Chongging Kangle, non-hazardous
wastes consumed by finished products consisted mainly of paper
boxes, plastics and general commercial wastes. We consider the
amount of materials consumed by finished products and non-
hazardous wastes was not significant, and thus the Group decided
not to disclose such information.

Since Fitness Business is a service industry, it only indirectly
produces greenhouse gases emission from electricity consumption,
and does not constitute other significant direct discharge of waste
gas, greenhouse gases, hazardous or non-hazardous wastes. During
the Reporting Period, CO, emission from electricity consumption was
approximately 727 tonnes (2022: approximately 804 tonnes) and the
emission intensity of CO, generated per person from electricity
consumption was 2.56 tonnes (2022: 3.06 tonnes), representing a
decrease as compared with the previous year’s emission, which was
mainly due to the decrease in electricity consumption of fitness
centers in Singapore as they were closed due to expiry of the
leases. Please refer to the section “Use of Resources” below for
electricity conservation measures of the Fitness Business.
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A1 The types of During the Reporting Period, the Group considered that the emissions such as NOx, SO2 and
emissions and PM from the Pharmaceutical Business and the Fitness Business were not significant, and thus
respective emissions a decision was made not to disclose such information.
data.

A1.2 HiZ(EBE1) KR BERLE : 1,057 HERE : 2,100 PERE ¢ 7271 PERE : 8041
M (SE2) RER HE mE T T
B HE R (LAMARTE) 2.4908,/ A 3.2508, A 2.5608,7 A 3.0608, A
R (@) =& (1
LNEESEN - 818
R E) -

A1.2 Direct (scope 1) and Emissions: Emissions: Emissions: Emissions:
indirect (scope 2) 1,057 tonnes 2,110 tonnes 727 tonnes 804 tonnes
greenhouse gas Intensity: Intensity: Intensity: Intensity:

emissions from
electricity
consumption (in
tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of
production volume,
per facility).

2.49 tonnes/person

3.25 tonnes/person

2.56 tonnes/person

3.06 tonnes/person
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Fitness Business

A13 FEXBEEENE L EREY) : 67614 {2 EEY) - 658 3
2 (AMEET &) & (10 BEEREY) - ONE BERREY) - ONE
WA EE (MABE BEEm 10 BEEm 1
BB SRR B B
H) - 1.5918, A 1.0218, A
A1.3 Total hazardous Chemical wastes: Chemical wastes: Not applicable
wastes produced (in 676 tonnes 658 tonnes
tonnes) and, where Medical wastes: Medical wastes:
appropriate, intensity 0 tonnes 0 tonnes
(e.g. per unit of Hazardous chemicals:  Hazardous chemicals:
production volume, 1 tonne 1 tonne
per facility). Intensity: Intensity:
1.59 tonnes/person 1.02 tonnes/person
A1.4 FTEABEEEENE EEREY 311 MmEREEY) : 20001 BHEBARBERERNESTEREM YW -
2 (AMEET &) & (1 B B
BA)RE (MASE 0.07M8, A 0.34M8,” A
B8 FERME
H) -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous Non-hazardous Non-hazardous The Fitness Business had no significant

wastes produced (in
tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of
production volume,
per facility).

wastes:
31 tonnes
Intensity:
0.07 tonnes/person

wastes:
200 tonnes
Intensity:
0.34 tonnes/person

emission of non-hazardous wastes.
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Description of
emission targets set
and steps taken to
achieve them.

HH YA

Emissions Performance Table

L E R

Pharmaceutical Business
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%ﬁ CRIR AR o IR - JIea KGR - KRR
BEEBER  MBRIBESREWELE KT
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% WEBSFRNEEREBETE= TR
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With the goal of reducing gas emissions, the
Group regularly conducts exhaust gas
monitoring in accordance with the
requirements of various emission standards,
and ensures that the concentration of exhaust
gas emissions meets the emission standards
required by government regulations. During
the vyear, the Group carried out relevant
emission reduction work to achieve the goal,
such as phasing out production lines and
related facilities with severe pollution, using
natural gas as fuel to reduce emissions;
continued to operate the renovated temporal
storage sites for hazardous wastes and waste
gas collection and treatment facilities at the
sewage station. We have also implemented
the Solar Energy Generation Project and
carried out various energy conservation and
emission reduction measures, such acquiring
new exhaust gas filters, applying equipment
with high energy efficiency and centralising
production, to reduce concentration of
exhaust gas emission. During the production
process, the Group will avoid using
refrigeration equipment for cold storage
during peak periods of electricity
consumption, and has also eliminated high-
energy-consuming refrigeration equipment.
Meanwhile, we strengthened inspection,
timely dealt with abnormal situations,
eliminated environmental pollution accidents,
increased the pretreatment of the front-end
of production exhaust gas, and reduced the
total amount of exhaust gas emissions, while
a third-party test on waste gas emission was
conducted twice a year to ensure compliance
with the emission standards for purification
purposes.

+

BEXK

Fitness Business

PRIk — B E ([LED |) EMIREA 4 -
BT ER S ORI - HEEFREEEE -

Apart from replacing our lighting system with
Light Emitting Diodes (“LED(s)"), we also
promoted electricity consumption and energy
saving by putting up posters in our fitness
centres.
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MRBADRIRE LGRS REEREREY - I
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% ISR MR ER - WERH R - R
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MERBEABAAEBRNARETES(LE
B BEREAEEREERRIGE -

The Group classifies waste and targets to
reduce the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, and handles emissions in
accordance with regulations. We have
implemented waste sorting in all aspects
during the year. At the same time, we have
strengthened the promotion and education of
waste sorting for employees. Through
improving our environmental protection
facilities as well as utilising hazardous waste
storage sites, any domestic wastes and solid
wastes were disposed of separately, and we
sign disposal agreements with hazardous
waste disposal units to accelerate treatment
efficiency and reduce environmental risks. In
the future, we would continue to enhance
our hazardous waste management to prevent
any potential impacts on the environment.
We started with design of process research
and development, strengthened material
recovery and application, and negotiated with
suppliers to reduce or reuse the packaging for
raw materials to reduce waste generation. We
carried out green technical transformation of
plant equipment and production process,
selected fine materials, improved product
quality and service life, and reduced waste
generation from the source. All hazardous
wastes will go through detoxification
treatment by qualified vendors before
disposal, so as to ensure that wastes are
treated and disposed of in accordance with
the requirements.

2022
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The Fitness Business had no significant
emission of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes.
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The Group adheres to the concept of green development and has
been striving to implement the 3R Principle (Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle). Through equipment and technology transformation,
changing the way water is used for production, improving water
recycling utilisation rate, rationalising production layout, and
reducing demand for water in production, the Group continuously
optimises the use of resources, aiming to reduce resource
consumption and improve resource utilisation efficiency in all
possible aspects of business operations, including energy
conservation and water conservation.

Huge amount of water is required during the medicine
manufacturing process and provision of fitness services. Our sources
of water vary and largely depend on the location of our plants and
fitness centres. We are consciously taking steps in reducing our
consumption and contributing towards maintenance and recharge of
water sources. During the Reporting Period, we purchased sewage
rights to control the amount of wastewater discharge according to
the total amount of sewage discharge license. We controlled the
source, attached importance to the selection of raw materials and
auxiliary materials for production, and took scientific and rational
measures from the raw material selection stage to reduce the
hidden dangers of pollutants; sought alternative products for
difficult-to-process raw materials, or strengthened management to
limit the usage; adopted clean production process to reduce the
generation of wastewater during the production process. For the
wastewater generated, the Group selected suitable processes,
determined the best process parameters and operation management
mode, and treated the wastewater to meet the discharge standards.
Meanwhile, the Group adopted classified collection and separate
treatment to strengthen the recycling of wastewater, which greatly
reduces the technical difficulties and operational management
difficulties of wastewater treatment and reduces pollution. The
amount of wastewater discharge was relatively reduced through the
measures of emission reduction, and no excessive wastewater was
generated during the Reporting Period. In addition, we provide
waste recycling bins at all common areas of our plants to separate
wastes by nature for recycling and appoint recyclable waste
collection contractors to help discharge them.
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We invest in the enhancement and reformation of the Company’s
power facilities and devices. In particular, we reform street lamps
into energy-saving solar LED street lamps, remove and phase out any
production lines and relevant facilities that have serious pollution
problems with high energy consumption and replace the motor
water pumps with high energy consumption, with a view to
reducing electricity consumption. Since the utilisation of solar power
at the end of 2019, the power generation of clean energy as of
year 2023 was approximately 1,910,000 kWh (2022: approximately
2,490,000 kWh) per year. We have completed the replacement or
upgrading of our aged equipment to models that are more
efficient, and replaced the motor water pumps with high energy
consumption. For machinery with high electricity consumption such
as the refrigeration equipment, we have used the fluoride machines
for cooling and eliminated the ammonia machines, a kind of
refrigeration equipment with high energy consumption, to replace
the refrigerating medium and prevent air pollution. We also adopt
centralised cool storage in the nighttime, and alternatively use
refrigeration equipment for cooling during peak hours of power
consumption to reduce electricity consumption. We have completed
the replacement of LED lights in our plants and offices, providing
energy savings of up to 40% compared to conventional lights.
When constructing or upgrading plants, impacts on the environment
are our key consideration.

Regular energy audit or carbon audit was performed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group to monitor energy usage. All of our
pharmaceutical plants have passed the environmental assessment
certification of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
People’s Republic of China. The Solar Energy Generation Project was
implemented in our plants, and the refrigeration units with
frequency control were adopted, which provide energy savings of up
to 40%. Meanwhile, power distribution facilities were upgraded to
reduce reactive power loss and reduce the utilisation rate of air
conditioning. In order to encourage energy saving among
employees, the Pharmaceutical Business has incorporated the
amount of energy saving into department assessments, providing
performance incentives to projects with significant energy saving.
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We consumed 3.5 million kWh of electricity in 2023 (2022: 6.99
million kWh), and the intensity of electricity consumption per person
was 0.0082 million kWh (2022: 0.0108 million kWh). The decrease
in overall electricity consumption was due to the disposal of Shaanxi
Life Care which reduced the total electricity consumption, as well as
the decline in the total production value and the unsaturated
production of Chongging Kangle, resulting in a significant decrease
in electricity consumption. Subsidiaries of the Pharmaceutical
Business continued to implement the following measures to reduce
electricity consumption, including the elimination of high energy
consumption cooling equipment to improve production efficiency,
and the promotion of power consumption during staggered peak
hours; carry out green technical transformation of plant equipment
and process flow to improve the level of energy conservation and
consumption reduction in production; optimize production process,
reduce total electricity consumption, and pay attention to electricity
subsidy measures in a timely manner, etc..

We replaced water taps by installing water-saving devices and
increased water-saving renovation to improve the water recycling
rate. Chongging Kangle controlled the wastewater produced during
the production process. Regular reviews on water conversation
measures were conducted to prevent any act of wasting water. No
water shall be used to wash the floor of workshops except for
process water and water for cleaning of equipment and special
work types. Washing tanks and containers containing oil, acid
liquid, lye or liquid wastes within the factory area were also
prohibited to reduce wastewater and use of water for floor
cleaning. Meanwhile, the highly concentrated wastewater produced
is pretreated at the sewage stations with special distillation and
concentration process to reduce treatment costs, and centralised
pretreatment facilities for wastewater of high salinity will be
established at the sewage stations once the transformation of these
stations is completed and put into use, which is able to reduce the
wastewater used for equipment cleansing by approximately 300
tonnes each year.
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During the Reporting Period, we consumed approximately 78,080
tonnes (2022: approximately 152,035 tonnes) of water and the
intensity of water consumption per person is 183.72 tonnes (2022:
234.26 tonnes), representing a decrease as compared to last year,
which was primarily due to the disposal of Shaanxi Life Care and
the reduction in production volume of Chongqing Kangle resulting
in the significant drop of overall water consumption within the
Reporting Period. The annual planned water consumption of
Tongfang Pharmaceutical is 12,000 tonnes, and the actual water
consumption is 9,590 tonnes, which does not exceed the planned
usage. During the Reporting Period, we continued to implement the
following measures to address the water consumption:

—  Formulate annual targets for water consumption, strengthen
water conservation supervision and management and water
recycling;

—  Reduce water resource consumption intensity and improve
utilization efficiency through measures such as process
optimization, consumption reduction technology, adoption of
equipment with small water consumption;

—  the enforcement of clean production, recycling, and prohibiting
the cleaning of workshops by using a large amount of
drinking water (use sweeping instead);

—  the production of diphenylmethyl thioacetamide, amodiaquine
hydrochloride and ecabet sodium significantly dropped due to
market factors, resulting in drop of related water use;

— the installation of water saving devices, change of disinfection
mode, and improvement of the water recycling rate; and

—  Reduce the use of water for ground cleaning so as to reduce
water usage.
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Electricity and water are the major resources used in the Fitness
Business. Apart from replacing our lighting system with LEDs, we
promote energy saving by putting up posters around the fitness
centers to remind members and staff to consume less water.
Furthermore, we are digitalising our business and transitioning
ourselves into a paper-less office. In 2023, because of the closure of
the two fitness centers in Singapore due to the expiry of the leases
in 2022, resulting in a significant decrease in overall electricity
consumption. The electricity consumption was approximately 1.74
million kWh (2022: approximately 1.98 million kWh). The intensity
of electricity consumption per person was 0.0061 million kWh
(2022: 0.0075 million kWh), maintaining the level of energy
efficiency. The water consumption in 2023 was 48,283 tonnes
(2022: approximately 49,269 tonnes) and the intensity of water
consumption per person was 170.01 tonnes (2022: 187.33 tonnes)
due to the decrease in water consumption by members as a result
of the closure of the two fitness centers in Singapore owing to the
expiry of the leases.
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A2.1 Direct and/or indirect electricity electricity electricity electricity
energy consumption consumption consumption consumption consumption
by type (e.g. in total: in total: in total: in total:
electricity, gas or oil) 3.5 million kWh 6.99 million kWh 1.74 million kWh 1.98 million kWh
in total (in thousand Intensity: Intensity: Intensity: Intensity:
kWh) and intensity 0.0082 million 0.0108 million 0.0061 million 0.0075 million
(e.g. per unit of kWh/person kWh/person kWh/person kWh/person
production volume,
per facility).

A2 BFEKEREE (W WFEKE @EEKE KR BFEKE
LNEESEN - B 78,0800F 152,035 48,2831 49,2691
Riest &) °

B B T B
183.72W,/ A 2342608,/ A 170.0108,7 A 187.33M8, A

A2.2 Water consumption Water consumption Water consumption Water consumption Water consumption
in total and intensity in total: in total: in total: in total:
(e.g. per unit of 78,080 tonnes 152,035 tonnes 48,283 tonnes 49,269 tonnes
production volume, Intensity: Intensity: Intensity: Intensity:
per facility). 183.72 tonnes/ 234.26 tonnes/ 170.01 tonnes/ 187.33 tonnes/

person person person person
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We adhere to the concept of green development and implement the 3R Principle (Reduce,
Reuse and Recycle). We continuously optimise the use of resources, aiming to reduce resource
consumption and improve resource utilisation efficiency from the business operations level.

We invest in the enhancement and reform of
the Company’s power facilities and devices. In
particular, we reform street lamps into
energy-saving solar LED street lamps, remove
and phase out any production lines and
relevant facilities with high energy
consumption, and replace the motor water
pumps with high energy consumption to
reduce the electricity consumption. In
addition, the Solar Energy Generation Project
is implemented and central air conditioning
modules with frequency control are adopted,
with energy savings reaching 40%. The
power generation of clean energy as of the
end of 2023 was 1,910,000 kWh per year.
The electricity consumption has reached
100% photovoltaic green energy
consumption. Moreover, the amount of
energy saving has been incorporated into
department assessments, providing
performance incentives to projects with
significant energy saving.

Electricity and water are the major resources
used in the Fitness Business. Apart from
replacing our lighting system with LEDs, we
promote energy saving by putting up posters
around the fitness centres to remind users
and staff to consume less water.
Furthermore, we are digitalising our business
and transitioning ourselves into a paperless
office.
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We have implemented planned water use and this year’'s water usage has not exceeded the
standard amount set at the beginning of the year. The Group purchased sewage rights to
control the amount of wastewater discharge according to the total amount of sewage
discharge license. Through measures of emissions reduction, the amount of wastewater
discharged has been relatively reduced, and no excessive wastewater has been generated. We
controlled the source, selected raw materials and auxiliary materials for production that can
reduce wastewater discharge using scientific and rational methods; adopted clean production
processes to reduce the generation of wastewater during the production process. In addition,
we replaced water taps by installing water-saving devices and increased water-saving
renovation to improve the water recycling rate. We are committed to guiding employees to
save water. We also carried out regular and timely inspections to prevent leaks and reduce
unnecessary energy consumption.

In addition, the wastewater produced during the production process is controlled, and highly
concentrated wastewater is treated at the sewage stations with special distillation and
concentration process. We will process wastewater using the best process parameters and
operational management mode to meet the discharge standards, and strengthen the recycling
of wastewater. We continued to implement measures throughout the year to improve water
consumption, including promoting clean production, recycling, and eliminating the use of large
amounts of drinking water to flush the workshop by adopting cleaning methods; reduced the
use of water for ground cleaning and minimise water usage.

A2.5

A2.5

S G PTRBEM
B8 AMEGHE) K&
(ER) BFEEEM
e -

Total packaging
materials used for
finished products (in
tonnes) and, where
appropriate, volume
per unit produced.

HRHBAEANBRYHNIZERE BN 2EMRESETERY  RMRSEKRFEAN
BEDHATEKR  HAKERETKEFHEER -

Materials consumed by finished goods are mainly paper boxes, plastics, metal, aluminium
pipes and other non-hazardous waste. Since the packaging materials consumed for finished
goods and non-hazardous wastes are considered not significant, the Group has decided not to
disclose such information.
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3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s consumption of natural resources is relatively small in
the daily operation process, which has no significant impact on the
environment. The Group is committed to enhancing environmental
sustainability and minimising the impact on the environment and
natural resources through the above measures to reduce emissions,
waste generation and resource consumption. In case of any
pollution accident, the Group will immediately formulate an
emergency plan and report to the relevant departments to minimise
the environmental impact.

We recognise the environmental responsibilities associated with our
business and are committed to minimising the environmental
impacts of our business operation. Our environmental strategy is to
strike a harmonious balance between our business and the
environment. In order to establish a green working environment, we
request at least one-third of the managed area of our operation
plants to be green.
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Description of the
significant impacts of
business activities on
the environment and
natural resources and
the actions taken to
manage them.
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Environment and Natural Resources Performance Table

BEXK BEXK

Pharmaceutical Business Fitness Business
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Our major environmental policies are as below:

To comply with all environmental requirements applicable to our operations

To improve the environmental structure according to the industry’s best practices

To integrate environmental considerations in all stages of business operations (e.g.
planning, design and manufacturing)

To enhance environmental awareness of our employees via trainings

To support environmental activities of the communities where we operate

To encourage green coverage on lawns

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with local laws and regulations on
environmental protection. Relevant laws and regulations mainly include but are not limited to:

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China* ((FF#E A R KX MERE
RFEED)

Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({/
FEARKRB KRS L AZED)

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({(F#E A
RAEMBIKIEEBAED)

Standards for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage* ({f& 2 EE¥ET 175 212 4l
IZAED)

Hazardous Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Technology Policy* ({f& % B& 4155 b5
JRRRITER D))

Comprehensive Emission Standards for Air Pollutants* ((K RS2 MER A BERUZ E))
Emission Standards for Air Pollutants in the Catering Industry* ((E 88 AR5 2 WEER
1ZAED)

Comprehensive Discharge Standards for Water Pollutants* ({7K)5 4R & HERMUZZE))
Beijing Domestic Waste Management Regulations* ({3t & 11 4 & 87 % & B & 51))

During the Reporting Period, no reported instance of non-compliance with relevant
environmental laws and regulations was noted in our operation.
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4. RIE# 4. Climate Change

RIFZERTHEENRBRE - WHAE Climate change leads to frequent extreme weather and has a
BEELXTEATE - KEBBEIZIREMRE  significant impact on daily operations. The Group pays attention to
BB BRIRS (LR EEEEMNAD the trend of global climate change and incorporates climate change
EHeEEEEF - Bt - AEEEHERIAET mitigation and adaptation into corporate social responsibility
HREESEZRR  WHEREUMREE T management. Accordingly, the Group has identified and assessed
Z a2 B RR A B 1B IR 2 0 1 48 R iR i K the risks of climate change and drawn up measures to safeguard
FI55] - REBT HEEZIESIFFEM - LUK the safety of its employees, including the strict compliance with the
LPREXINFRENEERESRIEE relevant extreme weather guidelines issued by the government. The
BRHNBmAR SEETHRIRIZEE Group has formulated emergency gquidelines and measures to
B - BOERAR - reduce future damage from disasters and cope with extreme
weather caused by climate change. The Group regularly reviews its
climate change policy to ensure its effectiveness.

TIRELEAXT

Climate Change Performance Table

BAREMER BEXE BEXHK

Key performance indicators Pharmaceutical Business Fitness Business

":ﬁjw

A4.1 e g Rk eY SEHEIZHREERECHEDS  SRESCHEREEMACELSEEERED - EFFIL
BOUAEEXENE FERREZAR  UHTHEEARBEINZE - URESIERZESIMER - AR AR
ARFEHEEEE k.  RIXEEEOBPEREHREBCERNBHRR - @S EHRBRTABBE  RORRE

—ET

- — =

2022 2022

JE1TE) © AR

A4 Description of the The Group pays attention to the trend of global climate change and incorporates climate
significant climate- change mitigation and adaptation into corporate social responsibility management. The Group
related issues which has identified and assessed the risks of climate change and drawn up measures to safeguard
have impacted, and the safety of its employees. It has formulated emergency guidelines and measures to reduce
those which may future damage from disasters and cope with extreme weather caused by climate change. The
impact, the issuer, Group regularly reviews its climate change policy to ensure its effectiveness.

and the actions taken
to manage them.
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We recognise our employees as an important asset and we provide
fair and equal opportunities to our employees regardless of their
backgrounds and genders. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had
a total of 709 employees (2022: 912) from the business segments.
Among those employees, 425 employees (2022: 649) were from the
Pharmaceutical Business and 284 employees (2022: 263) were from
the Fitness Business. The total number of employees decreased due
to the sale of Shaanxi Life Care in the Pharmaceutical Business
during the Reporting Period. However, the number of employees
(personal trainers) in the fitness center increased due to an increase
in customers. We are committed to building an open and
inspirational working environment to all our employees.

The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and age to
balance the culture and communication among employees. The
Group encourages a diverse workforce and welcomes all kinds of
employees to make the principle of fairness a common practice.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had 709
employees (2022: 912), of which 379 (53%) were male (2022: 447
(49%)) and 330 (47%) were female (2022: 465 (51%)).
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REBIZMR - EEER - FheAAR R RE The Group’s total workforce by gender, employment type, age

DEEEBBEIENT

REERER

group and geographical region are as follows:
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EEAZ (RHHEES)

FE
IR

EBEAH
Key performance indicators Number of employees
“EC=HE —ECFE
2023 2022
Total number of employees 709 912
Total workforce (by gender)
Male 379 447
Female 330 465

Total workforce
(by employment type)

Full-time 701 908
Part-time 8 4
Total workforce (by structure)

Senior management 17 23
Middle management 111 116
Rank and file employees 581 773
Total workforce (by age group)

Under 30 years old 184 202
30 to 50 years old 439 607
Over 50 years old 86 103

Total workforce

(by geographical region)
The PRC 425 649
Singapore 284 263
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B HEREA

BEEAB (AR

Total workforce (person)

IES# 2 (ZMLFIES)
Total workforce (by gender)

EEAH (REHE D)
Total workforce (by gender)

330, 47%

379, 53%

@t
Male

® Tt
Female

3. EERH(KEEBEHD)

Total workforce (by structure)

EEAM(BREESREHT)

Total workforce (by structure)

17, 2% 6

()
111, 16% 581, 82%

O SRERE OHRERE O HEAB
Senior Middle Rank and file
management  management employees
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4. FEEEH(RFERAEFET)
Total workforce (by age group)

EEAH (RFRARE )
Total workforce (by age group)

86, 12%’

184, 26%

® 30N T @305ES0E @ 505 E

Under 30 30 to 50 Over 50
years old years old years old
REAT

REBBARBE TRRARGEFNAIESH
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24%) » WHEEBRKERL22% (ZE - _F:
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439, 62%
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5 FEESEH(KHESS)
Total workforce (by geographical region)

EEAH (RHELESD)

Total workforce (by geographical region)

284, 40%

425, 60%

©® N o+
Singapore The PRC

Retaining Talents

The Group is committed to maintaining employee turnover rate at
an acceptable low level to facilitate the accumulation of skills and
experience. In 2023, the turnover rate of male employees was
approximately 20% (2022: 24%), the turnover rate of female
employees was approximately 22% (2022: 15%), and the total
turnover rate of employees was approximately 21% (2022: 20%).
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and geographical region are as follows:

K=
Key performance indicators Turnover rate
—EBCO=HEE —E-_EE
2023 2022
Employee turnover rate/number 21% 20%
of employee

Employee turnover rate

(by gender)
Male 20% 24%
Female 22% 15%
Employee turnover rate

(by age group)

Under 30 years old 39% 39%
30 to 50 years old 16% 13%
Over 50 years old 7% 18%

Employee turnover rate

(by geographical region)
The PRC 10% 12%
Singapore 37% 38%

RE - HERERRE
OVERNANCE REPORT

RERAE
Employee turnover
—EBC=HEE —EB-_EE
2023 2022
148 178
77 108
71 70
71 78
71 81
6 19
42 77
106 101

57

The Group’s employee turnover rate by gender, age group
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We are committed to the principle of equal employment and
creating a working environment which provides equal employment
opportunities, so all employment decisions shall be based on
objective criteria. Equal opportunities principles are applied in all of
our formulated employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees.
Remuneration packages are determined based on responsibilities and
performance, and the Company reviews the work performance of
employees on a regular basis and may carry out performance
assessment for employees on an annual basis or according to its
business needs. Working time, rest periods and defined
contributions are in compliance with relevant labour laws and
regulations.

Pursuant to relevant employment regulations in each region, such as
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({1 ZE AR LA
B4 %)%)), the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China* ((FZEARFEMBILEEE)E)) and the Employment Act of
Singapore, the employee handbook of each of our subsidiaries
regulates our remuneration scheme, including basic salary, bonus,
social security contribution and statutory holidays correspondingly.
We contribute social security and provident fund in compliance with
local labour law and regulations, namely the Social Insurance Law of
the People’s Republic of China* ((FF#ZE AR KEFBEITEREE)), the
Regulations on Management of Housing Provident Funds* ({{XE 2
HEe EIEIEM)), and the Central Provident Fund Act of Singapore,
etc. Our remuneration scheme is comparable to peers in the local
industry. Working hours and rest periods are in compliance with
local labour laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, no reported instance of non-
compliance with relevant labour laws and regulations was noted.
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We do not tolerate discrimination or harassment

We do not tolerate discrimination or harassment against any
employee based on his/her nationality, religion, gender, sexual
orientation, age, race, disability or any status protected by law.
Complaints about discrimination or harassment would be dealt with
impartially on a confidential basis. During the Reporting Period, no
reported instance on discrimination or harassment was noted.

We welcome feedbacks

We encourage our employees to provide feedbacks and address
their concerns to the Company proactively. A number of channels
are in place for our employees to express grievances and complaints
which will be well-handled according to the predetermined
procedures to ensure equality to all employees when related matters
are handled.

2. Health and Safety

We promote occupational safety and health

We are committed to providing a safe working environment to our
employees and to protecting them from occupational hazards.
Environmental, health and safety management systems are
implemented in all sites. Safety guidelines are formulated and
communicated to all employees. Relevant regulations on health and
safety that have significant impact on the Group include but are not
limited to:

— Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupation Diseases* ({H ZE A & 2k F B Bt 2 fim by
SBED);

—  Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({FHZE A
REMBIZ 2 EER),

—  Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurances* ({ T{5R k2 1§
BiI») of the PRC; and

—  Workplace Safety and Health Act of Singapore.
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With the mutation of the virus, changes in the pandemic situation,
popularization of vaccination and accumulation of prevention and
control experience, the prevention and control of the COVID-19
pandemic is facing new situations and the prevention and control
work has entered a new stage. In view of the mutation of the virus,
it is more prone to lower pathogenicity, upper respiratory tract
infection and shorter incubation period. COVID-19 will exist in
nature for a long time, and the disease caused by it will gradually
evolve into a common respiratory infectious disease. Since 2023, in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic, China has downgraded
COVID-19 as a Category B disease and relax the anti-pandemic
measures. We have followed the plans, policies and measures
introduced by the national government to respond to the pandemic.
We will continue to monitor and evaluate any other matters that
may affect the health and safety of our employees, and formulate
corresponding solutions and measures to protect our employees in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations.

Relevant trainings are organised regularly and various safety
educations and trainings, including handling of hazardous and
chemical substances, dust explosion prevention, fire safety, fire
protection knowledge trainings and related activities, are
commenced to improve our employees’ awareness on health and
fire safety. We have appointed safety officers to supervise the safety
level of each aspect of operations and provide the Group's
employees with information and training courses about operation of
equipment in office, production facilities, mining tools and
inspection equipment on a regular basis. Spot checks by the
management on the implementation of safety measures are in place.
Regular internal trainings and ad-hoc external trainings are provided
to our physical trainers to ensure that they are well-equipped.

During the Reporting Period, we organised and held fire drills for
fire incident caused by hazardous and chemical substance.
Particularly, Chongging Kangle carried out firefighting trainings and
on-site fire drills. In addition, annual or semi-annual fire drills were
carried out in each of our fitness centres and organised by the
property management department of the headquarters during the
year, in which all on-site personnel are required to participate. Each
fitness centre was equipped with fire safety manager responsible for
communication with the fire safety officer of the property on any
fire safety issues. Meanwhile, we also provided CPR/AED trainings to
the employees, and were awarded the Bizsafe certificate by the
Occupational Safety and Health Division of Singapore.
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In respect of the Pharmaceutical Business, the Group has established
an environmental, health and safety department, formulated a
production safety management system, and regularly conducted
training and assessment for employees. All employees are
responsible for maintaining a healthy and safe working environment.
Non-compliance with the Company’s health and safety rules may
result in disciplinary action. Once an employee is found to
constitute a safety hazard, occupational disease or work-related
injury, he/she should immediately report to the manager and fill in
the form of occupational disease or work-related injury to the
management as necessary, and the relevant responsible department
will follow up and investigate such matter.

For the past three years, the number and rate of work-related
fatalities of the Group were 0 (0%), 0 (0%) and 0 (0%) in 2023,
2022 and 2021, respectively, and lost days due to work injury were
0 day, 0 day and 301 days in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
The Group has strictly complied with the laws and regulations
relating to occupational health and safety and has implemented
practical safety management to effectively eliminate potential safety
risks.

During the Reporting Period, no reported instance of non-
compliance with relevant occupational safety and health laws and
regulations was noted in our operation.
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Key performance indicators

BEITHABRLE

Number and rate of
work-related fatalities

+

The number and rate of work-related fatalities of the Group
occurred in each of the past three years (including the reporting
year) are as follows:

SHI=E AAE —T-_F BAHWEX ZTZ-F FHHkE
2023 Percentage 2022  Percentage 2021  Percentage
(X) (%) (A) (%) (A) (%)

(person) (person) (person)

0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

AEBERTSBAIERBEEENT :

The Group's lost days due to work injury are as follows:

—E-=F
BRENIER Key performance indicators 2023
(H)
(CEVD)
EAIGELATIEEH Lost days due to work injury 0 0 301
3. BRRIEI 3. Development and Training

HIERETHE

BHREEXRSRBEABLE  RENTA
RENEY - RAKEREERMEENE
B ZmAEZESEBRRE ([GMP]) REE
77 EARE SR AN AR I o B APT Y B E D E AR
FiBEGERERZIE - R SRR

We provide learning opportunities

We provide our employees with adequate trainings regarding
production, skillsets and code of behaviour. We provide appropriate
and ongoing trainings on quality, Good Manufacturing Practice
("GMP") of drugs production, and medical skillsets or knowledge to
our employees. Our system not only ensures that all suitable
employees are trained, but also monitors the effectiveness of the
trainings.
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AEFEZUNREERNESNZIIEER The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee

DHBTEAT category of the Group is as follows:
BAE ZHlAE
Number of
BREMIER Key performance indicators Percentage employees trained

ZBRO=ZFE T _FE ZBIZHFE T _FE

2023 2022 2023 2022

ZilEE Employees trained Percentage/ 84% 88% 596 804
ADt A total number of employees

FHEEEA (RMHRIBSD) Percentage of employees
trained (by gender)

St Male 49% 45% 292 359
g Female 51% 55% 304 445
ZIEEBES L Percentage of employees
(REEERES) trained (by employee
category)
BREEE Senior management 2% 3% 15 21
PARERRE Middle management 14% 13% 83 105
£EAE Rank and file employees 84% 84% 498 678
1. HBIZIESHTLE 2. ZiESHETL (EMEFES)
Total Percentage of employees trained Percentage of employees trained (by gender)
BIIEERD FiEE B (RERIE5)
Total Percentage of employees trained Percentage of employees trained (by gender)

292, 49%

\113. 16%

304, 51%
596, 84%
® XIS ® XIES ® St ©® 1t

Employees trained Employees untrained Male Female
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3. RIESELN (EESEFES)
Percentage of employees trained
(by employee category)

TIEEES L REEERES)
Percentage of employees trained (by employee category)

15, 2%

()
83, 14% 498, 84%

O ESHERERE OFHEHEE HEAB
Senior Middle Rank and file
management  management employees

REBEZEERREEBEFNED  BEEE T The data of the Group’s average training hours completed per
BRE AN R S ER T employee by gender and employee category are as follows:

P19 3 I B B #3252

BERENEE Key performance indicators Average training hours Total training hours

—EC=FE T FE ZE-=FfE —T-—_FE
2023 2022 2023 2022

RBEFY 1238 Average/Total training hours 70 92 49,478 83,645
completed by employees
EEZRZINTERE Average training hours

(RHERIE D) completed by employees
(by gender)
B4 Male 63 81 24,057 36,362
Z Female 77 102 25,421 47,283
EEZRZINTERE Average training hours
(REEERES) completed by employees
(by employee category)
SREEE Senior management 75 68 1,272 1,566
PARERRE Middle management 52 74 5,816 8,567

HEEAE Rank and file employees 73 95 42,390 73,512
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Our employment policy strictly prohibits the employment of children
and forced labour, and strictly complies with the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labor* ((ZEIH#EFRZETMRE)), the Special
Protection for Juvenile Workers* (&R F LRERIRERTE)) in the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({FR#E AR LFIE 4
&))%)) and other relevant laws and regulations in the labour laws
of the PRC and Singapore. In order to more effectively prevent the
employment of child labour, the Group has established a rigorous
age verification process to ensure that all candidates have reached
the legal age for employment. In addition, we have set up
employee suggestion boxes to allow employees to report child
labour and forced labour, so as to prevent the Group from illegally
hiring child labour or forced labour. Also, the Group has established
a reporting mechanism for child labour and forced labour to
encourage employees to report truthfully. If child labour and forced
labour are found, we will immediately investigate the causes to
ensure that no employees work overtime on an involuntary basis.
During the Reporting Period, no reported instance on child labour or
forced labour was noted.

All our raw materials were sourced from the Group’s list of
qualified suppliers. Admission to the list of qualified suppliers must
follow strict standards. After a preliminary screening, potential
suppliers are subject to an on-site audit entailing a comprehensive
assessment of the supplier’s quality management level, capability of
ensuring a stable supply, safety and environmental management,
employee health and social responsibility, corporate culture and
business reputation, etc. The list of qualified suppliers is closely
managed with regular assessments to eliminate unfit suppliers.
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The Group has established a set of clear standard procurement
management procedures, which include procedures for evaluating,
selecting and monitoring suppliers to ensure that environmental and
social risks associated with the supply chain are minimised. Before
engaging suppliers, they are required to go through a series of
audit procedures to review their quality, environmental and safety
performance in a comprehensive manner before they can be
adopted. In view of the complexity of the supply chain, each
business unit of the Group must consider different conditions and
standards when selecting suppliers, including price, service, location,
productivity (service capability) and legal procedures. At the same
time, the Group will also conduct special consultation on a case-by-
case basis and consider suppliers’ performance in social responsibility
and environmental protection. The Group conducts regular review
on suppliers every year. If a supplier is found to be in serious
violation of its agreed responsibilities and operating procedures, the
partnership will be terminated to ensure that the quality,
environment and safety performance of the supply chain are in line
with the Group’s policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 100 suppliers
(2022: 307), of which 98 suppliers were located in the PRC (2022:
301), O suppliers were in the United States (2022: 2) and 2
suppliers were in other regions (2022: 4).

The number of suppliers of the Group by geographical region is as
follows:

HEMEE
ERENER Key performance indicators Number of suppliers
—EC=FE —E-FE
2023 2022
Rt &EE 5 By region
& The PRC 98 301
EH The United States — 2
=i} Others 2 4
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The Group recognises the importance of safeguarding intellectual
property rights. In order to promote the cultural awareness of
intellectual property rights with respect to knowledge and integrity,
we have established a strict internal control system to manage our
intellectual property, encompassing the administration of trademarks
and patents, the management of proprietary technology and
confidentiality, and intelligence and information gathering, which
includes the compliance with relevant regulations such as the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests* ((FEARKEMBEEEEERZREE)) and the
Personal Data Protection Act of Singapore. Trademarks of newly
designed products would be registered on a timely basis, and
detailed descriptions of most of our products are updated on our
websites.

The Group regards customer information as the guarantee for the
safe operation of the enterprise and the healthy development of
customer relationship. Accordingly, the Group strictly complies with
various confidentiality systems stipulated by the state. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
product health and safety, advertisement, labelling, methods of
redress and protection of intellectual property rights, as well as the
relevant laws and regulations relating to privacy.

Product quality is one of our main focuses in our business
operation. The Group is committed to providing quality products
and services to its customers, and pays attention to the customers’
feedbacks on the products sold and services provided by the Group.
In addition to the commitment, the Group is also committed to
providing quality pharmaceutical products and fitness services to its
customers at competitive prices. Customers can express their
opinions or complaints through the established communication
channels. The Group will conduct investigations and prepare reports
based on the feedbacks, and take corrective measures if necessary.
The Group has established strict product and service complaint
procedures to better understand customers’ opinions on the Group’s
services, so as to continuously improve the operation process and
service quality and enhance customer satisfaction.
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We provide medical-related products in accordance with the relevant
pharmaceutical regulations including the Drug Administration Law of
the People’s Republic of China ((FF#EARKXMBLEREIRE)), the
Regulations for the Implementation of the Drug Administration Law
of the People’s Republic of China* ((FF#E A R ME %R E IR AT
M f6f1)), GMP, the Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical
Products* ((#R& 2 EEEIRRE)) and the Pharmacopoeia of the
PRC* ((FREZ£52)) We apply and adhere to a strict set of quality
standards, and we adopt relevant policies and procedures to
identify, measure, control and sustain product-quality excellence. We
strive continuously to improve these standards in order to enhance
our quality and safety procedures and ensure ongoing compliance
with GMP. Our manufacturing facilities are inspected by national
authorities. We have adopted GMP in all of our manufacturing
plants. Our active pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates
active pharmaceutical ingredients production base located in
Chongging City has obtained the GMP certification from the
National Medical Products Administration of China. The active
pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates active pharmaceutical
ingredients production line located in Chongging City holds a valid
FDA certification and the Prequalification (“PQ") of the World Health
Organisation (“WHO"), while Chongging Kangle holds a valid new
WHO PQ for an active pharmaceutical ingredient. The Active
Pharmaceutical Ingredients Chloroquine Phosphate, which was
previously recognised by the National Medical Products
Administration of China (formerly known as the China Food and
Drug Administration), has also been tested and proven to be the
treatment and allopathy of pneumonia infected by COVID-19 by the
Consumable and Industrial Committee of the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the PRC* (FREl T2z B L EBHE
fn L% 7)), Chongging Economy and Informatization Commission
and the Economy and Informatization Commission of Changshou
District of Chongqing City* (EEMRSELENEB(LLEZER).

Labelling is essential for our brand reputation. To prevent
mislabelling, we separate our production lines for different products.
All of our products are labelled with detailed information in line
with the requirements of relevant labeling laws and regulations.

According to our drug recall policy, our pharmaceutical products are
divided into three categories based on their emergence level of
harmful impacts and consequences. The drug recall policy also
prescribes that affected items shall be recalled immediately, as fast
as 24 hours. To ensure the effectiveness of the recall process, recall
drills are performed every year.
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Fitness Business

The Group's fitness business will continue to enhance its in-store
experience and staff professionalism, and strive to provide customers
with high-quality fitness services with the latest state-of-the-act
cardiovascular training equipment. Our fitness centres are located in
Singapore. As at 31 December 2023, there were 8 fitness centres
(2022: 8) and 1 yoga centre (2022: 1) in Singapore. Free personal
trainers sessions are provided to new customers to help them get
familiar with the correct ways to use the equipment. We provide a
24-hour cooling-off period for each signed contract. Customers are
welcome to cancel any signed contracts within the cooling-off
period. We handle our customers’ private information in accordance
with the relevant privacy protection laws. Our fitness centres in
Singapore are awarded the “Shape Sports Awards” for four
consecutive years from 2015 to 2018 and the “Global Health &
Pharma (“GHP") Distinction Award for Yoga Classes and Facilities”
in 2020. In 2021, our brand was awarded the “Expat Living's
Readers’ Choice Awards 2021 — Gold Award for Best Yoga
Studio”. We were also awarded the Total Defence Awards (TDA) NS
Advocate Award for SMEs in 2022 and 2023, which recognizes
exemplary individuals, small and medium-sized enterprises, large
companies and organizations for their outstanding support towards
strengthening the defence of the country.

Total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons are as follows:

A BoLLE
ERENER Key performance indicators Number/percentage
—EC=HEE —E-FF
2023 2022
A2 kEmERMEZB U Total number of products subject to recalls 0Eitem 0THitem
B EE o 4B B8 for safety and health reasons
EEEmAR Total products sold 0Eitem 0Hitem

EEADEXEMBERT
72 2 B2 B 72 e T 78 [ Y
B

Percentage of total products sold or 0% 0%
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons

BN Em &R KK Number of products and service related 0 R cases 385Rcases
Eg= complaints received
ERAUDBRM B Total number of legal dispute cases 0 R cases 2R cases
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Honesty and fairness are important assets of the Group’s business.
The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of ethical
corporate culture. By providing integrity and anti-corruption training
and information to directors and employees, such as the Anti-
Corruption System Practice Guidelines for Listed Companies and the
Integrity Practice Guidelines for Directors, the Group ensures that all
employees strictly comply with the relevant laws, industry norms and
standards, professional ethics and company rules and regulations in
their daily operations. In order to maintain a fair and efficient
business and working environment, we put a great emphasis on
anti-corruption. The Group does not tolerate any forms of
corruption. Also, the Group has formulated the Anti-Corruption
Policy and has adopted relevant code of conduct in employee
handbook, complying strictly with relevant anti-corruption laws such
as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China* ((AF#EAR
HAMBFIE)), the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China* ({(F#E AREMBRTIEEHEFIE)), the Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery* ((BARZE I 2 BFER 1T
BEEITIRE)), the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China* ((FF#E ARZEMEIREEEE)), the Civil Code of
the People’s Republic of China* ({(FPZEARLMEREE)) and the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({(##E A R HHI
BlA&%E)Y) to prohibit employees from extorting, charging or
accepting any form of interest from people, companies or
organisations which conduct business with the Group.

We have formulated the Whistleblower Policy and established a
whistleblowing system, under which employees and relevant third
parties (such as customers and suppliers who have dealings with the
Group) can report all forms of suspected illegal acts, and we have
also formulated and implemented an internal integrity system to
strengthen the integrity and honesty of employees in governance
practices. The Group has established effective whistleblowing
procedures to encourage employees, managers, directors and
relevant third parties to report any misconduct or dishonest acts,
such as acts that may lead to incorrect financial reporting,
corruption, fraud and other offences or illegal acts. If employees are
concerned about misconduct or dishonesty within the Group, they
are encouraged to report to the members of the Audit Committee
or the Executive Committee through the secretary of the Audit
Committee as soon as practicable. We will make every effort to
keep whistleblower’s identity and the reported content confidential,
pending assessment or investigation by the Audit Committee, the
Executive Committee or other designated investigators.
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In addition, the Group has provided clear guidelines on misconduct,
such as bribery, corruption, embezzlement, insider trading, theft of
the Group’s assets, etc., to ensure that its employees can report
their concerns to the Human Resources Department through various
channels in an absolutely confidential manner. If the case is found
to be true upon investigation, the Group will take appropriate
corrective measures and take disciplinary actions against the parties
involved. If the case involves criminal elements, the Group will refer
the case to the relevant authorities for handling. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the provisions on
prohibiting corruption and bribery and applicable legal requirements
for listed companies in Hong Kong, and has not been involved in
any legal prosecution cases regarding corruption.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group and its
employees.

In order to better fulfil its social responsibilities, the Group actively
participates in community and charitable activities, and by
encouraging its employees to participate in charitable and social
services, devoting time and effort to support the local community, it
creates a harmonious society and undertakes the responsibility of a
good corporate citizen to contribute to the community. The Group
focuses on the living standards of the community, cultural projects,
education and development, and labour cooperation. During the
Reporting Period, the aggregate amount contributed by the
Company for charity purpose was HK$0.04 million (2022:
HK$180,000) and a total of O employees (2022: 214 employees)
have participated in voluntary activities with O service hours (2022:
2,080 hours). In the future, the Group will explore more suitable
opportunities for charitable activities including charitable donations
and encouraging employees to perform volunteer services.

For people living in poverty, the Group helps them through
donating money or goods. As part of corporate social responsibility
initiatives, we also provide free personal training sessions to
underprivileged children in Singapore. For the Pharmaceutical
Business, we donate money to staff who are sick and for poverty
alleviation in nearby regions.
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In 2023, the Company participated in the Youth Work Explorer
Program (Y-WE F A 5t 2l) to provide meaningful work experiences
for local high school students.

The Youth Work Explorer Program consolidates resources from the
business sector to support grassroots youths and help to address
long-term intergenerational poverty, and aim to help young people
identify their interests and potential, discover their career
aspirations, and gain confidence and motivation through relevant
work experiences, guiding them towards their life goals. The
Program matches students with employers for summer internships,
exposing them to potential careers and helping them develop skills
for future employment.

Interns worked alongside our employees on real work projects and
assignments tailored to their interests and skill levels. The goal was
to spark curiosity about our industry while giving students a taste of
the daily responsibilities of different roles within our organization.
Students gained an understanding of our operations and culture
through hands-on learning opportunities.

Our employee mentors provided guidance, feedback and support to
help interns navigate their new work environments and
responsibilities. Students left with a greater understanding of
potential career paths and real-world job skills. For our employees,
it was a rewarding experience to play a role in shaping the future
workforce.

* For identification purpose only
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Kontafarma China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within a
sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence. The board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company recognises the importance of the corporate culture,
which is instilled and continually reinforced across the Group. The
Company has developed its core culture and visions to enhance
team cohesion and realize complementary advantages and sincere
cooperation, so as to facilitate the Company’s long-term sustainable
development. For details of the Company’s corporate culture and
visions, please refer to the section headed “ABOUT US” on the
Company’s official website. The Board has satisfied itself that the
Company’s established purpose, values and strategy and its
corporate culture are aligned, and will continue to act with
integrity, lead by example, and promote the Company’s desired
corporate culture.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company in light of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the
Directors, the Company applied the principles of, and complied
with, all the applicable code provisions of the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven Directors in total, with four
executive Directors (the "“Executive Director(s)”) and three
independent non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”). The composition
of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this report
(unless otherwise stated) is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Bai Pingyan (Chairman)

Mr. Chai Hongjie

Mr. Huang Yu (President)

Mr. Jiang Chaowen (Chief Executive Officer)

INEDs

Mr. Chan Sze Chung
Mr. Zhang Ruibin
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" section in the Directors’ Report on pages 105 to
112 of this annual report.

As at the date of this report, to the best knowledge of the Board,
there are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among the Directors.
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Board Process

During the Year, the INEDs provided the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) with a wide range of
expertise and experience. Their active participation in the Board and
Board committee meetings has brought independent judgement on
relating to the Group’s strategy, performance, and
management process, taking into account the interests of all
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

issues

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company had three INEDs, representing not less than one-third of
the Board, with two INEDs possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The
independence of each INED has been assessed based on the same
set of independence criteria under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to
review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results and
other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt with. The attendance
records of each Director at Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and shareholders’ meetings of the Company for the Year
are set out below:

—g-=E
RRAFAE
2023 Annual

General
Meeting

REZEE ¥Mz8e EHEEE REZEE REREEZEE
Risks
Management

Committee

Audit
Committee

Investment
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Nomination
Committee

HE/IBTEENY A

Number of meetings attended/held

HOES: Executive Directors:
BYERE(FE) Mr. Bai Pingyan (Chairman)
KEAEE Mr. Chai Hongjie
EMRE(TTRAEE) Mr. Huang Yu (President)
RENEE(BREHTE) Mr. Jiang Chaowen

(Chief Executive Officer)
BIkaES: INEDS:
BRELLE Mr. Chan Sze Chung
RInM L& Mr. Zhang Ruibin

REERE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack

3/4
2/4
4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4
4/4

" - - on - 1
- - - - - il
- - - - - 1

n n
n n
n n

33 n mn n
33 n n n
23 = mn n
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The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual operating
budget, annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment or
reappointment (based on the recommendations made by the
Nomination Committee), material contracts and transactions,
corporate governance, environmental, social and governance as well
as other significant policy and financial matters. The Board has
delegated day-to-day responsibility to the executive management
under the instruction/supervision of the Executive Committee which
has its specific written terms of reference. The respective functions
of the Board and the management of the Company have been
formalised and set out in writing and are reviewed by the Board
from time to time to ensure that they are consistent with the
existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance each year to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. A notice of a regular
Board meeting of at least 14 days is given to all Directors such that
they are given an opportunity to include matters for discussion in
the agenda. The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman/the President/the Chief Executive
Officer in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are complied with. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a regular
Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board
meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following
Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder
or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board, which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The third amended and restated articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”) also stipulate that save
for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall not vote (nor
shall he/she be counted in the quorum) on any resolution of the
Board in respect of any contract, arrangement or proposal in which
such Director or any of his/her close associates has a material
interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and the
related materials and to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
are continuously updated on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, a written procedure and Independent View Policy were
established by the Company to enable the Directors, in discharge of
their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.
The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Independent View Policy on an annual basis.
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Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD")

In addition to Directors’ attendance at meetings and review of
papers and circulars sent by the management of the Company, the
Company arranged training on topics relating to legal and
regulatory updates which are relevant to the Group’s businesses at
the Company’s expenses. The chart below summarises the
participation of each of the Directors in CPD activities during the
Year:

SHEFHEEXBRED

Participation in CPD activities

HEHEEEHE
BRZEIN
ILE: -0
meE a8
Attending
trainings/
briefings/
seminars/
conference
relevant to
Directors’ duties

B AR ES

Reading
regulatory
updates

HITES Executive Directors:

BYEXE Mr. Bai Pingyan v/ v
NN Mr. Chai Hongjie v v
BRI A Mr. Huang Yu v/ v
BEE Mr. Jiang Chaowen v v
BYFHTES: INEDs:

PR B EB A Mr. Chan Sze Chung v/ v
R Imi S & Mr. Zhang Ruibin v/ v
REERE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack v/ v

ENAARESHIZERE
DZFRAMRXECI4G A B
AEFRFZEZIEINZ L -

EEHERARBF
YA ST RIS — A6
[RVNEIE/ 25

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the Part 2 of the CG Code on directors’ training
and have provided the Company with the records of their training
received during the Year.
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Code provision C.2.1 of the Part 2 of the CG Code provides that
the roles of the chairman and the chief executives should be
separate and performed by different individuals.

The roles of the Chairman of the Board, the President and the Chief
Executive Officer are separate. Such division of responsibilities
reinforces the independence and accountability of these Directors.
Mr. Bai Pingyan, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for
leadership and effective running of the Board while Mr. Huang Yu,
the President, is responsible for strategic development of the Group
and Mr. Jiang Chaowen, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible
for overall management of the Group. Their respective
responsibilities have been clearly established and set out in written
form as Functions/Roles of the Board and the Senior Management
of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) specifies the
director nomination process and criteria for the identifications,
selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Nomination Policy” of this report.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package
from the Company Secretary or the lawyer of the Company on the
first occasion of his/her appointment. This induction package is a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the responsibilities
and on-going obligations to be observed by a director pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Companies Ordinance”), Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO"). In addition, this induction package includes materials briefly
describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation
for the corporate governance practices adopted by the Board.
Directors are continuously updated on any major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practices.
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All INEDs were appointed for a specific term, but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office but are eligible for re-election. Details of the terms of
appointment of the INEDs are set out in the section headed
“TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INEDs” contained in the Directors’
Report on page 113 of this annual report.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM"), one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. Further, any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment whilst
for those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be
eligible for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
in accordance with its terms of reference. The duties of the Board
in respect of the corporate governance functions include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i)  reviewing and monitoring the training and CPD of Directors
and senior management;

(iii)  reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has performed the corporate governance
duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Investment Committee, the Risks Management
Committee and the Executive Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all
meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the
Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the
committees are required to report back to the Board on their
decisions and recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section
headed “THE BOARD" of this report, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the Board
and comprises a majority of INEDs. As at the date of this report,
the Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Bai Pingyan (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), who is an
Executive Director, and Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr. Zhang Ruibin and
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, who are INEDs.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on matters including nomination and
appointment of directors, succession planning and structure,
composition and diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and it
can seek independent professional advice according to the
Company’s policy if considered necessary. The major roles and
functions of the Nomination Committee are included in its terms of
reference, which are available on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with
matters by way of circulation. One Nomination Committee meeting
was held in 2023 and the attendance of each member is set out in
the section headed “THE BOARD" of this report. In addition to the
above-mentioned Nomination Committee meeting, the Nomination
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during the
Year. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the major
work performed by the Nomination Committee was as follows:

(i) assessed the independence of INEDs;

(i) monitored the implementation and effectiveness of the board
diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
and the measurable objectives under such policy and its
progress, reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval
of the Board Diversity Policy;

(iii)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval of the
Nomination Policy;

(iv)  reviewed the structure, size, composition of the Board and time
invested by the Directors in performing their duties taking into
account the Board Diversity Policy and the Company's
corporate strategy;

(v)  reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
proposed resolutions for the re-election of Directors at the
AGM.

(vi)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval of the
renewal of two INEDs" appointments and relevant terms of the
appointment letters;

(vii) accessed and reviewed the suitability of two Directors, being
involved in disciplinary measure incidents, for acting as
Director, and submitted for the Board’'s approval;

(viii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
Functions/Roles of the Board and the Senior Management.
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The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets out the
director nomination process and selection criteria to identify, select
and recommend candidates for Directors.

The Director nomination process is as follows:

1. The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for
identifying director candidates, including recommendations
from Board members, management, and professional search
firms. In addition, the Nomination Committee will consider
director candidates properly submitted by the Shareholders.

2. All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates
nominated by the Shareholders, are evaluated by the
Nomination Committee based upon the director qualifications.
While director candidates will be evaluated on the same
criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the discretion to
establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may
vary based on the composition, skill sets, and experiences of
the collective Board rather than on the individual candidate.

3. The evaluation of director candidates may include, without
limitation, the following:

—  review of resume and job history;

—  personal interviews;

—  verification of professional and personal references; and
—  performance of background checks.

4.  The Board will consider the recommendations of the
Nomination Committee and is responsible for designating the
director candidate(s) to be considered by the Shareholders for
their election at the AGM, or appointing any suitable
candidate to act as Director to fill a Board vacancy or as an
additional Director subject to compliance of the Articles of
Association.

5. All appointments of Director should be confirmed by letter of
appointment and/or service contract setting out the key terms
and conditions of the appointment of the Directors.
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The selection criteria considered by the Nomination Committee in
evaluating director candidates are as follows:

1. All director candidates will be evaluated based upon the director
qualifications, skills and experience, gender diversity, etc. that
can add to and complement the range of skills, experience
and background of the existing Directors.

2. The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a director
candidate in recommending to the Board potential new
Director, or the continued service of existing Director:

—  the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

—  proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s
field and the ability to exercise sound business
judgement;

— the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

— an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that are
required of a member of the Board and the
commitment of time and energy necessary to diligently
carry out those responsibilities;

— independence: the independent non-executive director
candidates should meet the “independence” criteria as
required under the Listing Rules and the composition of
the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the
Listing Rules; and

—  skills that are complementary to those of the existing
Board and the ability to contribute to the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which,
in particular, are set out as follows:

(@) participating in Board meetings to bring an
independent judgement to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;
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(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

(¢)  ensuring the committees of the Board on which he
or she serves to perform their powers and
functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(d) conforming to any requirement, direction and
regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Articles of Association or imposed by legislation or
the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

3. Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria
for director candidate, although the Nomination Committee
may also consider such other factors as it may deem are in
the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. The Board
Diversity Policy sets out the objectives and principles regarding
board diversity for the purpose of achieving the Company's strategic
objectives of balanced diversity at the Board as far as practicable.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
the contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the
Board.

The Company has also taken, and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but
not limited to the Board and senior management levels. The
Nomination Committee will annually review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and also the abovementioned diversity
perspectives and its progress on achieving those objectives. While
the Board recognises that gender diversity at the Board level can be
improved given its current composition of all male Directors, the
Board would continue to take initiatives to identify suitable
candidates so as to appoint at least one female Director on the
Board no later than 31 December 2024. Gender diversity at
workforce levels (including our senior management) is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on Page 54 of this
annual report.
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The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
annually to ensure its effectiveness and recommend any revisions
that may be required to the Board for consideration and approval.
The Nomination Committee also monitors the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consists
of three members, namely Mr. Zhang Ruibin (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chan Sze Chung and Mr. Zhang
Junxi Jack, all being the INEDs.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management
of the Group and other matters relating to remuneration, reviewing
the performance of Directors and senior management in discharging
their responsibilities and conducting annual performance evaluation,
and considering the remunerations paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions for
other positions in the Group. The remuneration of all Directors is
subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to
ensure that their remunerations and compensations are reasonable.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and/or
approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and it can seek
independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy
if considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee are included in its terms of reference,
which are available on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The model of the Remuneration Committee described in code
provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of Part 2 of the CG Code has been adopted by
the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in
accordance with its terms of reference. One Remuneration
Committee meeting was held in 2023 and the attendance of each
member is set out in the section headed “THE BOARD” of this
report. In addition to the above Remuneration Committee meeting,
the Remuneration Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during the Year. During the Year and up to the date of
this report, the Remuneration Committee had performed the work
as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
remuneration package of two INEDs for renewal of the terms
of appointments;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
discretionary bonus for the year ended 31 December 2022 for
an Executive Director;

(iii)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval of the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management of the Group; and

(iv)  reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management
of the Group.

Each Director will be entitled to Director’'s fee which is to be
proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM each year.
Further remunerations payable to the Directors (including any service
fees of the INEDs) for their additional responsibilities and services
will depend on their respective contractual terms under their
respective employment contracts or service contracts as approved by
the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
Details of the Directors’ remunerations are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. Details of
the remuneration policy of the Group are also set out in the section
headed “"EMPLOYEES” contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 17 of this annual report.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Part 2 of the CG Code, the
annual remunerations of the members of the senior management of
the Group (other than the Directors) during the Year by band is set
out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of three
INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Sze Chung (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack. To retain
independence and objectivity, it is chaired by an INED with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The primary duty of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
its oversight of the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the
financial statements of the Company, the effectiveness and
adequacy of risk management and internal control systems, the
independence of the external auditor and the performance and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit and compliance
function. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and it can seek independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are included
in its terms of reference, which are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance
with its terms of reference. Three Audit Committee meetings were
held during the Year and the attendance of each member is set out
in the section headed “THE BOARD" of this report. In addition to
the above Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during the Year.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee had performed the work as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed the independent review report/audit completion
report from the external auditor and the management’s
response in relation to the final audit for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “2022 Final Audit”), the interim results
review for the six months ended 30 June 2023 (the “2023
Interim Results Review"”) and the final audit for the Year (the
“2023 Final Audit”);
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reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
financial reports for the year ended 31 December 2022, for
the six months ended 30 June 2023 and for the Year
together with the relevant management representation letters
and announcements;

reviewed the internal control review reports/summary prepared
by the business responsible officers and external consultants
respectively, and instructed that the issues raised would be
addressed and managed by the management;

formulated and reviewed the 3-years internal control review
plan;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
updated report on substantiation of the resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget;

formulated, reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s annual
review of the Connected Transaction Policies, the Related Party
Transaction Policies and Procedures, the Whistleblower Policy,
the Anti-corruption Policy, the Policy on the Disclosure of
Inside Information and the Code of Conduct and Compliance
Manual;

reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Group; and

reviewed and approved the scope of audit by the external
auditor in respect of the 2022 Final Audit, 2023 Interim
Results Review and 2023 Final Audit, as well as reviewed and
recommended for the Board’s approval of the re-appointment
of external auditor, and their remuneration and terms of
engagement.
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As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee consists of
four Executive Directors, namely Mr. Bai Pingyan (Chairman of the
Executive Committee), Mr. Chai Hongjie, Mr. Huang Yu and Mr.
Jiang Chaowen.

The Executive Committee is vested by the Board with all the general
powers of management and control of the activities of the Group,
save for those matters which are reserved for the Board’s decision
and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of the
Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to
discuss the operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with
matters by way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly
responsible for undertaking and supervising the day-to-day
management and is empowered to:

(i) formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the
Group as determined by the Board.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following a specific enquiry made by the Company, that
they had complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code during the Year. Relevant employees who, because of
their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of inside
information have been requested to comply with the provisions of
the Model Code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with
the support from the finance department of the Company, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe that they
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable and ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The reporting
responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, BDO Limited, are
set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 124 to 132
of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Through
establishing the Audit Committee, Risks Management
Committee and the risk management team ("Risk
Management Team”) under it, the Board reviews the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems and performs its obligations of
continuously supervising and managing the design,
implementation and monitoring of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Risks Management Committee currently consists of four
members, namely Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack (Chairman of the Risks
Management Committee), Mr. Chan Sze Chung and Mr.
Zhang Ruibin, who are the INEDs, and Mr. Jiang Chaowen,
who is the Executive Director.
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During the Year, the Group has engaged an external
consultant to assist the Group in the assessment of risk
management, performance of its internal audit function and
conducting annual internal control review according to the
requirements of the CG Code. The assistance facilitated
annual review of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the Year. The effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for the Year was considered and reported by the management
to the Board.

The Group’s risk management uses a blended top-down and
bottom-up approach for identifying risks. Through identifying
the internal and external sources of risks in the existing
business of the Group (including pharmaceutical and fitness
businesses), the known possible risk events and their areas of
impact are assessed. The identified risks of the Group are
categorised into 4 main areas which involve financial,
operational, reputation and human resources. A discussion of
the policies and procedures on the management of each of
the major types of risk which the Group is facing is included
in the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in
the Directors’ Report on page 101 of this annual report.

Risks of the Group are ranked as high, medium or low levels
under risk evaluation in terms of five categories of
consequence and five categories of likelihood of occurrence.
Risk level evaluates the residual risk levels based on the
controlling power of existing controls. The result from the risk
analysis is evaluated to determine whether or not identified
risks are within expected tolerance levels. Through the risk
evaluation, risks are transferred, shared, eliminated or
effectively controlled through proposed risk mitigation
measures. For each proposed risk mitigation measure based on
the results of risk evaluation, a risk owner is designated to
follow up on the risk treatment, and an expected completion
date of the relevant mitigation measure should be assigned to
ensure accountability for risk mitigation. The relevant
information of risk evaluation is documented in the top risk
records of the Group, which are put together and escalated to
the Risks Management Committee and the Board for
discussion and approval after the risk registers are being
provided by the operating subsidiaries and consolidated by the
Risk Management Team.



@ . g

BEEMBRAR  EREEEEK -
Bk BT %?A%&i%ﬁ{{ﬂ BEZ
;R

BEEENBRARZRREEEK A
Be '8 IR TAEHLAE -

s BYFRUNEHMELENEALR
Z BB & o it

s BY¥FRETBRMTEMEAL
RERRERBRERIER

o BFFERNEENBLRRZEM
BARR

s ERNEFBHAKRERARETFZ
EE R

BEEBREEEGERREREZEERE
EgRMEREITERRE

O fﬁ* Tigﬂﬁ E/El

. BERTRAREEE 2 FREN

. SEEFARTENE (BERR
SR

s SERNTIERRIN(BEIE
/\A{&%*& HN\ isz&Eg
Jﬁl‘ﬁ%ﬂﬁ)

s ERNEEBHAKRERARETZ
Ti’rﬁﬂl‘ii

—EZ=FF 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4
= SEEARRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The roles and responsibilities of operating subsidiaries, the Risk
Management Team, Risks Management Committee and the
Board in risk management are as follows:

Summary of the works of risks managements from operating
subsidiaries to the Risk Management Team:

o Preparing and updating the risk register of the operating
subsidiaries semi-annually

o Following up on the remediation status of the proposed
risk mitigation measure documented in the top risk
records semi-annually

o Identifying any significant risks from operating subsidiaries
semi-annually

° Real-time monitoring any risks that exceed the risk
appetite of the Group

Summary of the works of risks managements from the Risk
Management Team to the Risks Management Committee and
the Board:

° Reviewing the remediation status of top risks annually
o Reviewing any updates to the risk universe annually
o Updating the risk management policy, including risk

assessment criteria annually
° Reviewing top risk identification including top risk

dashboard, risk universe and top risk records annually

° Real-time monitoring any risks that exceed the risk
appetite of the Group
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Internal audit plays an important role in internal controls,
which is to assist the Audit Committee in carrying out analysis
and appraisal of the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Group’s internal control systems. During the Year, the Group
engaged an external consultant to facilitate the internal audit
function of the Group. The Company set up a three-years
internal audit work plan according to the risk evaluation
results. The external consultant conducted the review of
internal audit projects for the Year in accordance with the
approved three-years internal audit work plan. The review
included understanding the operation processes of the
proposed scope of review through interviews with the
management and the responsible persons; performing
walkthrough testing for relevant internal control system
processes; identifying weaknesses of the design and
implementation of the internal control system; providing
relevant suggestions for improvement; making enquiries to the
management and person in charge of the process for
remediation; and reviewing relevant documents to understand
and analyse the implementation situation of review
suggestions stated in the 2022 internal audit report which
have yet to be rectified. The above scope of work and review
method have been confirmed and approved by the Audit
Committee.

Through the internal control review report and summary for
the Year provided by the external consultant and Internal
Audit Department/business responsible officers respectively, the
Audit Committee and the Board analysed the internal control
findings and suggestions; and assessed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal audit function. The issues raised
in the internal control review report and summary would be
promptly addressed and more strongly managed by the
management. The risk management and internal control
systems of the Company will be reviewed on an annual basis.
The Audit Committee and the Board are satisfied that there
are effective and adequate risk management and internal
control systems in the Company for the Year.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage rather than
completely eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. It has a key role in the management of risks that
are significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. The
Board, through the Audit Committee and with the assistance
of the Internal Audit Department/business responsible officers
and the external consultant, has conducted annual review on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the Year and considered such systems to be
effective and adequate for the Year. The Board also
considered the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions as
well as those relating to performance and reporting of
environmental, social and governance to be adequate. The
management has provided a confirmation to the Risks
Management Committee (and the Board) on the effectiveness
of these systems for the Year.

The Company has a policy with regard to the principles and
procedures for handling and disseminating the inside information of
the Company in compliance with the requirements under Part XIVA
of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling
and dissemination of inside information, which includes:

° designated reporting channel for relevant officers in possession
of potential inside information to notify the persons
designated by the Board (the “Designated Persons”);

o designated Persons to assess the potential inside information
and provide advice, and where appropriate, to escalate such
information for the attention of the Board to resolve on
further actions so as to comply with applicable laws and
regulations; and

. restrictive access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.
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External Auditor’'s Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the Group’s external auditor in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the Year is set
out as follows:

FER
HK$’000

RASEBEREME R Services rendered for the Group
%8R 7 Audit services 2,027
FZERG (REEHTHEER Non-audit services (including review of interim

Hfh) results and others) 826
1BET Total 2,853

DNRWE

ABELX L AARBZ AR WEREREY
BR - ARt 2 EEFBFHRRANFHRE112
ArESeREMBZ[EERSREEAR
ZIBEFFE] —fh -

EHRAE3I 29K T - EERETREE -
ﬁAZQTMEM#x$9FB¢%ZHW
EEE o LR - AIERTRAFED K
DO/ ZBEEEE -

RRRZEBER

E=EeXRAERRRFRFBACERE -
BRASEZEMEREBZRIEARER
BRERZEM BEPHRERFR AERE
Ko EFEMXMHERKIBZARERK
HEMERARBFUEAZTH -

ﬁ%?’“‘ﬁﬁ%‘ﬂ&l\ CARRBZBERARETEEE
LERES T ERR CMETERIERR -

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Si Tou Man Wai is the Company Secretary and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. Ms. Si Tou’s brief biographical
details are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” in the Director’s
Report on page 112 of this annual report.

Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules stipulates that an issuer's company
secretary is required to take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. It is confirmed that Ms.
Si Tou has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to the Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Such published documents together with the latest
corporate information and news are also made available on the
website of the Company.

In addition to publication of information, the general meetings of
the Company provide important opportunities for constructive
communication between the Board and the Shareholders.
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The 2023 AGM was held on 9 June 2023. The Chairman of the
Board took the chair of the 2023 AGM to ensure Shareholders’
views are communicated to the Board. The chairman of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee and the representatives of the external auditor of the
Company were present thereat either to answer questions to ensure
effective communication with the Shareholders. The attendance
record of the Directors at the 2023 AGM is set out in the section
headed “THE BOARD" of this report.

The chairman of any independent Board committee formed as
necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent Board committee)
should also be available to answer questions of the Shareholders at
any general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’
approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meeting for each
substantial issue, including but not limited to the re-election of
Directors and the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the
independent auditor of the Company in the 2023 AGM.

The notice to Shareholders is sent at least 21 days before the
meeting in the case of AGM and at least 14 days in case of all
other general meetings. An explanation of the detailed procedures
of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders at the
commencement of the meeting. The chairman answers questions
from the Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll
results are published in the manner prescribed under the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s shareholders and investor
engagement and communication activities conducted during the
Year and was satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of
the shareholders communication policy.
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Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company can request the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting according to Article 64 of the Articles of
Association by written requisition, with stated business proposed to
be transacted, which must be validly served at the head office and
principal place of business of the Company registered in Hong Kong
(the “Head Office”) or at Tricor Secretaries Limited, the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong (the "Registration
Office”). Besides, Shareholders may make a proposal at a
Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board
at the Head Office or at the Registration Office in the form of a
proposed resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the
proposal for discussion and be relevant to the Company’s business
scope.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy. A
Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board to the Head Office
for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the
nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In
addition, Shareholders can contact the Registration Office for any
questions about their shareholdings. Shareholders and the
investment community who have any query in respect of the
Company, and comments and suggestions to Board or management
of the Company may contact the Company Secretary by email to
info@kontafarma.com.hk or serve a letter at the Head Office. In
addition, they may at any time make a request to the Company
Secretary for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

As regards a proposed election of a person as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company at
http://www.kontafarma.com.hk.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
posted its Articles of Association on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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For the purposes of providing that the Shareholders may by ordinary
resolution, rather than a special resolution, to remove the
Company’s auditor in order to conform to the Core Shareholder
Protection Standards set out in Appendix A1 of the Listing Rules,
the Company has amended the second amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company and
adopted the third amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association of the Company by special resolution passed on 9
June 2023. Details of amendment were set out in the circular of
the Company dated 27 April 2023. Saved as disclosed, there was no
change in the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company during the Year.

On behalf of the Board

Bai Pingyan
Chairman

28 March 2024
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Kontafarma China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities and details of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are
set out in note 54 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

The Group's revenue for the Year was derived mainly from activities
carried out in the Mainland China, Singapore and Taiwan. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue for the Year is set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 133 to 135 of this annual report
and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
Year (2022: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of the
distributable reserves of the Company was approximately HK$954.7
million.

Details of the Company’s reserves during the Year are set out in
note 53 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totaling approximately HK$35.0 million. Details of these and other
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
sections headed “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT”, “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” respectively from pages 5 to 7, pages 8 to
18 and pages 19 to 72 of this annual report and the paragraphs
below. The discussion and analysis in the “CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT”, “"MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and
“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT" form part
of this Directors’ Report.

The problems encountered by the Group’s pharmaceutical business
are still the uncertainties brought by the medical reform in
Mainland China. Facing the current situation, the Group’s
pharmaceutical business has always maintained a positive response
attitude and strives to give full play to its professional advantages in
new product research and development, market expansion and
capacity upgrading, so as to enhance its ability to resist risks.

The fitness business of our Group has gradually recovered from the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Going forward, this sector
primarily faces challenges such as increased labor and operational
costs, sluggish economic conditions, inflationary pressures, and rising
interest rates.

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks. A discussion of
the policies and procedures on the management of each of the
major types of financial risks which the Group is facing is included
in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to the
relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group. The
Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, with the support and assistance of the
legal consultants of the Company and the company secretarial
department.

Details of compliance with relevant laws and regulations are set out
in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 19 to
72 of this annual report.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Details of relationships with employees, customers and suppliers are
set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
19 to 72 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares,
were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Particulars of the share award scheme of the Company are set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remunerations offered to the employees of the Group generally
include salaries, medical benefits and bonus on a performance
related basis. The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by
the Remuneration Committee of the Board and are decided by the
Board, as authorised by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) at the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, the Directors’
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the third
amended and restated articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank borrowings of the Group which are repayable within one year
are classified as current liabilities. Repayment analysis of bank
borrowings of the Group is set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. The Group had interest
capitalized on assets constructed in progress amounting to
approximately HK$1,186,000 during the Year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results as well as the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 304 of this
annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
(unless otherwise stated) were:

Executive Directors (“Executive Director(s)”)

Mr. Bai Pingyan (Chairman)

Mr. Chai Hongjie

Mr. Huang Yu (President)

Mr. Jiang Chaowen (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (the “INED(s)")

Mr. Chan Sze Chung
Mr. Zhang Ruibin
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack

Pursuant to Article 109 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang
Yu, Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr. Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi
Jack shall retire from office by rotation and be eligible for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the 2024
AGM") to be held on 7 June 2024.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Bai Pingyan, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company on
27 September 2021 and 19 April 2022 respectively. He is also the
chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination
committee, the share dealing committee and the investment
committee of the Board. Mr. Bai has extensive experience in
corporate and finance management. He is currently the chairman of
the board of directors of Shenzhen Waranty Asset Management
Co., Ltd.* (RYIMERMBTEEETIEAR A (“Shenzhen Waranty”),
a controlling shareholder of the Company, and the chief accountant
of Shanxi Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (IIPEERKE
EEABRAF]). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Bai had been the
deputy head of the finance department and head of equity
investment department of Huayang New Material Technology Group
Co.,, Ltd* (CEBFMEEHEBBRAF) (formerly known as
Yangquan Coal Industry (Group) Co., Ltd.* ((GRIEZX (£B) R =
f£/24])), the chief accountant and director of Shanxi Zhaofeng
Aluminum Industry Co., Ltd.* ((LUFEIKEIREBREMLAR]), the chief
accountant of Yangquan Coal Industry Chemical Group Co., Ltd.*
BREZELELTIEBABERSEEZAT) and the deputy general manager
and chief accountant of Shanxi Yangmei Chemical Investment Co.,
Ltd.* (IIPERGEIC TR E B R E TR F]). Mr. Bai had also been the
director of Shenzhen Huakong Seg Co., Ltd. (“Huakong Seg”) (stock
code: 000068), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the director of Yangmei Chemical Co.,
Ltd. (FBEC TN AETRAT]) (stock code: 600691), the issued shares
of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the chairman
of the board of directors and general manager of Yangquan Coal
Industry Group Tian’an Industry Incubator Co., Ltd.* (5 RIEHEEE
AELEEBRABBREMAT]) and the chairman of the board of
directors and general manager of Yangquan Coal Industry Group
Huaneng Coal Power Investment Co., Ltd.* (B3 R EEBELEKTE
®EBREMADA). Mr. Bai obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree at the Nankai University in June 2009. He
was qualified as a senior accountant* (IE= & 5HAT) in December
2019.
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Mr. Chai Hongjie, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 3 September 2020. He is a member of
each of the executive committee and the share dealing committee
of the Board. Mr. Chai served as the Chairman of the Board of the
Company from September 2020 to April 2022. Mr. Chai has
extensive experience in corporate management and strategic
planning for business development. He is currently a director of
Shenzhen Waranty, a controlling shareholder of the Company, and
the director and the general manager of Huakong Seg. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chai held positions as chairman of the
board, directors and senior management in various companies and
organisations, including Changzhi Division of China Banking
Regulatory Commission* (FEIRITHEBEBERELZEERAREDR),
Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2558), the H shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Shanxi Guoxin Investment Group
Co., Ltd.* (LABEIRESEBEBRAF]), Zhonghesheng Capital
Management Co., Ltd.* (FEEREAREEEFRAF]), Shanxi Financial
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (LT84 @& &R EEBR D
A)]), Shanxi State-owned Capital Operation Co., Ltd.* (ILFAEEEE
ABEE AR AR, and Shanxi Guotou Sports Industrial Group Co.,
Ltd.* (LLUPERIREEEXEBEABRAR]). He had also been the
chairman of the board of directors of Shenzhen Waranty and a
director of several listed companies, including Shanxi Securities
Company Limited (stock code: 002500), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and GuangYuYuan
Chinese Herbal Medicine Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600771), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chai obtained a bachelor's degree in Economics from
Department of Finance, Shanxi Institute of Economics* (LI 788t 4E 22
B%) (now known as Shanxi University of Economics* (LLIFaEf & AER))
in July 1996. He was qualified as an intermediate accountant* (/1
W HAD) in May 1997.
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Mr. Huang Yu, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company and the President of the Group on 15 March 2014
and 3 September 2020 respectively. He is a member of each of the
executive committee and the share dealing committee of the Board.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Huang served as the Chairman of the Board of the Company from
July 2014 to September 2020. He is currently an executive director
and general manager of Shenzhen Aorongxin Investment
Development Co., Ltd.* (RYITMEREFEREZEREMR AT, the
chairman of the supervisory committee of Penghua Fund
Management Co., Ltd* (JEZEELEEFRAF]) and a director of
the GuoDu Securities Co., Ltd.* (B#FEFR D ER AT, a
company listed on National Equities Exchange and Quotations (stock
code: 870488). Mr. Huang had also been a director and senior
management of several listed companies, including the chairman of
the Board and a non-executive director of Neo-Neon Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1868), the issued shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, a non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the vice chairman and president of Tsinghua Tongfang
Co., Ltd.* (AAMDEMRAR]) (stock code: 600100), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the
chairman of the board of directors of Huakong Seg. Mr. Huang
obtained a master's degree in Science from the University of
Greenwich.
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Mr. Jiang Chaowen, aged 58, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, an Executive Director and the
Vice President of the Group on 11 December 2017, 23 January
2018 and 3 September 2020, respectively. He is also a member of
each of the executive committee, the risks management committee
and the share dealing committee of the Board. He joined the Group
in July 2016, and is currently the president and the chairman of
Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd* (RIJTZ¥EE B R A A))
and the chairman of Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
(EERER 5 AR A7) and Huakong Innovation (Beijing) Institute
of Pharmaceutical Research Co., Ltd.* (ZE#ZE&IFT (b ) ZEYHF 7E b
BRRAF]), all of which are subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jiang has
over 30 years of extensive management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. lJiang is currently a director of
Chongging Jewelland Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (Z5 B @ A5 B8 %EfH 5
BT (“Chongging Jewelland”) and Si Chuan Jewelland
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (PUJI[fERERZEAFIR A R]) (“Si Chuan
Jewelland”). Prior to joining the Group, he held positions of
chairman and general manager in The First South-west
Pharmaceutical Factory* (787 &% — i) (Chongging Qingyang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EEBHEEHFR A A]), Chongging
Jiachen Biological Engineering Co., Ltd.* (EEERAMIRBR A
Al), Chongging Jewelland and Si Chuan Jewelland. Mr. Jiang
graduated from the School of Business Administration of Chongging
University with a postgraduate qualification. He further studied at
the Party School of Chinese Communist Party of Chongging City,
Tsinghua University, Southwest China Normal University, and
Chongging University etc. during working time.
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INEDS

Mr. Chan Sze Chung, aged 54, was appointed as an INED of the
Company on 20 December 2011. He is the chairman of the audit
committee of the Board and a member of each of the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee, the risks
management committee and the investment committee of the
Board. Mr. Chan has been an independent non-executive director of
Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 1073) since July
2019, the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prior to joining the Company, he had acted as the chief financial
officer (from December 2009 to August 2010) of Coolpoint Energy
Limited (stock code: 8032), the issued shares of which were
previously listed on the Stock Exchange, as the acting chief financial
officer (from September 2008 to March 2009) of Nam Tai Electronic
& Electrical Products Limited, the issued shares of which were
previously listed on the Stock Exchange, and as the vice chief
financial officer (from March 2009 to November 2009) of Nam Tai
Electronics, Inc. (now known as Nam Tai Property Inc.), the issued
shares of which were previously listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. During the period from January 1993 to August 1997,
Mr. Chan was employed by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and served as
a senior accountant at the time of his resignation. He graduated
from the University of Wales with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting and Finance in July 1991 and obtained a Master of Arts
degree in Accounting and Finance at the University of Lancaster in
December 1992. Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Besides,
he is recognised as a chartered financial analyst by the CFA Institute
of the United States of America.
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Mr. Zhang Ruibin, aged 51, was appointed as an INED of the
Company on 24 July 2014. Mr. Zhang is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Board and a member of each of the
audit committee, the nomination committee, the risks management
committee and the investment committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang
is an external director of Moutai Group Company Limited* (fF Bl &
MNFEBERMEEEREEAQAF). Mr. Zhang has been (i) an
independent director of Guizhou Panjiang Refined Coal Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 600395), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, from 18 May 2013 to 23 March 2017,
(i) an independent director of China Zhenhua (Group) Science &
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000733), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from 5 June
2015 to 17 December 2021; (iii) an independent director of
Guizhou Qianyuan Power Co., Ltd (stock code: 002039), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from
12 September 2014 to 20 November 2020; (iv) an independent
director of Poly Union Chemical Holding Group Co., Ltd. (formally
known as Guizhou lJiulian Industrial Explosive Materials Development
Co., Ltd) (stock code: 002037), the issued shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since 10 March 2016; (v) an
executive director of Beijing Wudaokou Education & Technology
Co., Ltd.* GtRABOHBERIZRAER QT since 22 July 2016; and
(vi) and independent director of Guizhou Gas Group Corporation
Ltd.* (HINMRREBARD BR A 7)), the issued shares of which are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600903), since
29 August 2023. Mr. Zhang holds a doctoral degree in statistics
from the Xiamen University. He was a postdoctoral research fellow
at the Renmin University of China and The Finance Research
Institute of the People’s Bank of China* (FF B A RIE1TEEITITAT).
He obtained a qualification of non-practicing certified public
accountant in China. He was qualified as a senior economist by the
Human Resources Department of Guangdong Province* (BERE A
£ [E2). He was qualified as a certified treasury professional of The
Association for Financial Professionals. He has been awarded the
research project second prize by The Securities Association of China
and the key research project third prize by the People’s Bank of
China.
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Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, aged 60, was appointed as an INED of the
Company on 21 August 2015. Mr. Zhang is also the chairman of
the risks management committee of the Board and a member of
each of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang has over 30 years
of teaching and research experience in the field of economics,
finance and business management. He graduated from the Nankai
University with a bachelor degree in Physics in July 1983, and
obtained a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree in July
1986 and a doctoral degree in the Department of Economics at the
University of Pittsburgh in the United States in August 1992. Since
August 1992, Mr. Zhang has taught in a number of renowned
universities worldwide, including The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, University of Dundee in the United Kingdom, National
University of Singapore and The University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Zhang served as a vice president of the Tianjin University of Finance
and Economics from 2012 to 2018, and he is currently the dean of
faculty of business at Chu Hai College of Higher Education in Hong
Kong. From February 2013 to December 2019, he was an
independent director of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code:
9668), the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
since 2020.
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Ms. Si Tou Man Wai, aged 46, was appointed as the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of the Company on 7
November 2014 and the vice president of the Group on 3
September 2020. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Si Tou has more than 20 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, financing and financial advisory services
including mergers and acquisitions, valuation and corporate
restructuring, gained from both professional firm and listed
company. Prior to joining the Company, she worked at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in Hong Kong for around 12 years. From 29 June
2015 to 26 September 2016, she was an independent non-
executive director of Pak Wing Group (Holdings) Limited (now
known as China Hongbao Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8316), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Si Tou
holds a Master of Commerce degree in Funds Management and a
Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Finance from the
University of New South Wales. She is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.

Mr. Zhang Jie, aged 40, was appointed as the Vice President of the
Group on 3 September 2020. Mr. Zhang is currently the deputy
secretary to the Communist Party Committee and the board
secretary of Shenzhen Waranty and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to that, he worked as the political
officer of Shanxi Guotou Sports, and an officer at Yuncheng
Municipal Party Committee of Communist Youth League* (& &
EWHE). Mr. Zhang obtained a postgraduate qualification (B354
) in Economics from the Party School of the Central Committee
of the Communist Party of China (FF /R REK) in July 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

On 20 July 2023, with the recommendations from the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee, the Board approved the
renewal of service contract of Mr. Zhang Ruibin as an INED for a
term of three years commencing from 24 July 2023.

On 12 January 2024, with the recommendations from the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the Board
approved the renewal of service contract of Mr. Chan Sze Chung as
an INED for a term of two years commencing from 18 January
2024.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INEDS

Mr. Chan Sze Chung was appointed for a specific term of two
years, which shall continue until 17 January 2026, subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office.

For Mr. Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, their terms of
appointment shall be three years, which commenced on 24 July
2023 and 21 August 2021 respectively, and are subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office.
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Name of associated corporation

HAERULR) EMEMARLDR (THHARED
SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the
“Share(s)”), underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Interests in associated corporation

R P E £
BMOBEDE

Approximate

percentage of
interest in the
associated
corporation

Capacity

ExmEAA

Beneficial owner

5.47%
("SPF")

Note:

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Jiang Chaowen owned 5.47% interests in the
registered capital of SPF, a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of Shenzhen
Waranty.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company and their
respective associate(s) had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following Director
has declared interests in the following businesses (other than those
businesses where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or any member of the
Group) which are considered to compete or are likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during
the Year:

Mr. Jiang Chaowen holds directorship in and has interests in the
share capital of Chongging Jewelland. Chongqging Jewelland
engages in the wholesale of chemical Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients and its preparations, antibiotic Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients and its preparations, biochemical drugs and proprietary
Chinese medicines. In addition, he holds directorship in Si Chuan
Jewelland. Si Chuan Jewelland engages in the production and sales
of tablets, medical technology development, and technology transfer
and consultations. The business of the abovementioned companies
is likely to compete with the pharmaceutical business of the Group.

As other members of the Board are independent of the board of
directors of those companies which engage in competing businesses
and no single Director can control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s
length from the businesses of those companies. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors (not being the INEDs) had an interest
in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Year
and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s businesses to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director or any entities connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors and every one
of them is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which the Directors or any of them, shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty in their offices or otherwise in relation thereto provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year which provides appropriate coverage
for legal actions brought against the Directors.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or executed
during the Year.



— T =FF3{ ANNUAL REPORT 2023 117
+o
EEERE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FERRREMATRARG 2B
5923 )

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES

W-B-=F+-A=+—0 RALFE
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TR (R AR EERBAETHA BB

At 31 December 2023, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified to any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the
following Shareholders (other than a Director or the chief executive
RIBEFE SR EEGIE33615BEBF 2 &l of the Company) had 5% or more interests in the Shares or
Frd - MR SRR P A 5% A EH#E underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
= under section 336 of the SFO:

wE
Long positions
BARERD L
Approximate
percentage of
interest in
shareholding

%3 2B
Number of
Shares

IR R 1 & 4%

Name of Shareholders Capacity

TEEREEEREGRAR ([REREE]) EnEAA 3,172,778,000" 56.77%
China Health Management Investment Limited  Beneficial owner
(“China Health")
ERMREETR (FA)ARRQA REGEEE R 3,172,778,000? 56.77%
(TEmMREE])
Waranty Assets Management (HK) Limited Interest of a controlled
("Waranty Hong Kong”) corporation
RN EE R 2R REGEEE R 3,172,778,000® 56.77%
Shenzhen Waranty Interest of a controlled
corporation
ERRNR-EERREREESAREE REHEE R 3,172,778,000¢ 56.77%
(BRE%)([=8-%K])
Ningbo Free Trade Zone Sanjin Guotou Private  Interest of a controlled
Equity Fund Partnership Enterprise (Limited corporation
Partnership)* (“Sanjin Guotou”)
IWARRREESERR AR (MLERER]) REGEEE R 3,172,778,000® 56.77%
Shanxi Construction Investment Group Co., Interest of a controlled
Ltd.* (“Shanxi Construction”) corporation
LWAEESELABREERRAEERF REGEEE R 3,172,778,000© 56.77%
(TUAESEQE])
Shanxi Province Expressway Group Limited Interest of a controlled
Liability Company* (”Shanxi Expressway”) corporation
WA BEREEAR AR (MUERE]) REGEEE R 3,172,778,0007 56.77%

Shanxi Transportation Holdings Group Co.,
Ltd.* (“Shanxi Transportation”)

Interest of a controlled
corporation
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IR &

Name of Shareholders

LA EBEBEENELRRAA

WA ARBNEEEEEEERZEE
State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of

Shan Xi Provincial Government
("Shanxi Government Commission”)

BER T EEERERAF

THTF Energy-Saving Holdings Limited

Resuccess Investments Limited (“Resuccess”)

BHARHERAR (TRFKMD])
Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.*

(TEEEELRA)

(ABLAEBEAEAREELZBRAA)
Shanxi State-owned Capital Operation Co.,
Ltd.* (“State-owned Capital Operation Co.")
(Formerly known as Shanxi State Capital
Investment and Operation Co., Ltd.*)

(TLEEEEZR])

(BER T ERE]D)

("THTF Energy-Saving”)

(“Tsinghua Tongfang”)

fi st -

(1

b E i BN 3,172,778,000 % 8% 1D 2

ERLEREGRERS -

ERREAEATEBRED BITRA100%
2R ARG ARTRERBESEDSZ
DR EERELZ - RIBEFEFRBASEEG - it
HFEPREREZARKRDER -

RYEREEBLANBANERES S
1767 o B 4 R B 1T AR A5 100% 2 35+ A
UL AR AR R B A 2 R R
fiak o BIEEHRAEEH - LTI

fEREZ AR A AR

514
Capacity Shares

EEHDEEE R

® +

Ha
Long positions

BOREBD

Approximate
R&GEE percentage of

interest in
shareholding

Number of

3,172,778,000® 56.77%

Interest of a controlled

HEHDEE g

corporation

3,172,778,0009 56.77%

Interest of a controlled

B
B m

corporation

=B A 513,994,0000% 9.20%

Beneficial owner

EEHDEEE R

513,994,000 9.20%

Interest of a controlled
corporation

ZEHEBE S
Interest of a controlled
corporation

Notes:

(1) The figure refers to the legal and beneficial interests of China Health

in 3,172,778,000 Shares.

(2)  Waranty Hong Kong owns 100% interests in the issued share capital

513,994,000 9.20%

of China Health and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which China Health is interested. The figure refers to the
same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shenzhen Waranty, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Waranty Hong Kong, owns 100% interests in the issued share capital
of China Health and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which China Health is interested. The figure refers to the
same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.
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Sanjin Guotou owns 45.50% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Waranty and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Shenzhen Waranty is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Construction owns 46.38% interests in the registered capital of
Sanjin Guotou and 46.40% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Waranty respectively and is therefore deemed to have,
including via Sanjin Guotou, an interest in the Shares in which
Shenzhen Waranty is interested. The figure refers to the same
interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Expressway owns 46.38% interests in the registered capital of
Sanjin Guotou and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Sanjin Guotou is interested. The figure refers to the
same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Transportation owns 100% interests in the registered capital of
Shanxi Expressway and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Shanxi Expressway is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

State-owned Capital Operation Co. owns 90% interests in the
registered capital of Shanxi Construction and 90% interests in the
registered capital of Shanxi Transportation respectively. State-owned
Capital Operation Co. is therefore deemed to have, via Shanxi
Construction and Shanxi Transportation, an interest in the Shares in
which Shenzhen Waranty is interested. The figure refers to the same
interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Government Commission owns 100% interests in the registered
capital of State-owned Capital Operation Co. and is therefore deemed
to have an interest in the Shares in which State-owned Capital
Operation Co. is interested. The figure refers to the same interests of
China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

The figure refers to the legal and beneficial interests of THTF Energy-
Saving in 513,994,000 Shares.

Resuccess owns 100% interests in the issued share capital of THTF
Energy-Saving and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which THTF Energy-Saving is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of THTF Energy-Saving in the Shares under the
SFO.

Tsinghua Tongfang, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Resuccess, owns 100% interests in the issued share capital of THTF
Energy-Saving and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which THTF Energy-Saving is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of THTF Energy-Saving in the Shares under the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company or their respective associate(s)) of any
interest and short position in the Shares and underlying shares
which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers in aggregate accounted for 17% and
34% respectively of the Group’s total revenue during the Year. And
the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases during
the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates (within the meaning of
the Listing Rules) or the Shareholders which, to the knowledge of
the Directors, owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company, had any beneficial interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers of the Group during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“related parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details
of these transactions are disclosed in note 50 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. Certain related party
transactions as disclosed in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements constitute connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules and the Company had complied with all applicable
rules under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 6 April 2022, Tongfang Pharmaceutical (as the landlord), and
SPF (as the tenant) entered into the master tenancy agreement,
pursuant to which Tongfang Pharmaceutical agreed to lease certain
factories and warehouses in Yanging District, Beijing, the PRC,
covering a gross floor area of approximately 14,080 square metres
to SPF for a term commencing from the 29 July 2022 and ending
on 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive).

Upon the completion of the transaction contemplated under the
equity transfer agreement dated 6 April 2022 entered into among
Tongfang Pharmaceutical, Shenzhen Waranty and SPF, SPF became
a subsidiary of Shenzhen Waranty, which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, SPF became an associate
of Shenzhen Waranty and thus a connected person of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the master tenancy
agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the highest
applicable percentage ratio calculated based on the highest annual
cap under the master tenancy agreement exceeds 0.1% but is less
than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the master tenancy
agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above transactions were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 6 April 2022.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions.

During the Year, the actual amount of transactions under the
master tenancy agreement was RMB3,312,552 and was within the
annual cap of RMB3,600,000.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction discloseable under the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the date of this report.
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The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed and approved by the Board, including the INEDs.

The INEDs had reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing
connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties conducted in
accordance with the terms of the tenancy agreements; and (iii) in
accordance with the tenancy agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2024 AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 7 June 2024. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 3 June 2024 to Friday, 7 June 2024 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In order for the Shareholders to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2024 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited of 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2024.
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DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of approximately HK$0.04
million during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 73 to 99 of this annual
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the
Year and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Group’s financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2021, 2022 and the Year have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A
resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited and to authorise the Directors
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the 2024 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Bai Pingyan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

*  For identification purpose only
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{EH : +852 2815 2239 Tk ZHI254E

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kontafarma China Holdings Limited ZFE#EEEREB AR A A (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) set out on pages 133 to 303, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the ”Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BEMzER N AR ERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEEXRER

Key audit matter

EBHESZRE  —HEEARAIARREMER AR ZEHRGEEER ((RUEEEHE]D FME
Expected credit losses (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables, amounts due from an associate and
amounts due from other related parties

BMSEKE S5HIE - —HEERARRFIREMEAR IR BRMBEHEEKESRIE  —EBE QAR RRREMEAR S
RZEHMEEBERTGINABREZETE  DAREHR AR ZEREEBEETRCEFEE

Y BEEENGAYBRREBEBER - BRFEIREHRM Our procedures in relation to ECL assessment of trade
ERENEHEEEEB SR EE A NEEEME o receivables, amounts due from an associate and amounts
We identified ECL assessment of trade receivables, due from other related parties included:

amounts due from an associate and amounts due from

other related parties as a key audit matter due to the
significance of balances to the Group’s consolidated
financial position and the involvement of subjective
judgement and management estimates in evaluating the
ECL at the end of the reporting period.

WA A SRR T4 RA7TFTIEE W —=F+=
A=+—H  E£EMNEKREZRIE - —EBERFRX
REREMBEBRIRIAR(NEKEEBEERE 2RO A
106,518,000/ 7T * 145,181,000/87T % 101,701,000 7T ©
As disclosed in notes 4 and 47 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s trade receivables,
amounts due from an associate and amounts due from
other related parties, net of allowance for credit losses,
amounted to approximately HK$106,518,000,
HK$145,181,000 and HK$101,701,000 respectively as at
31 December 2023.

ERHEERENZRECRT (BIEERBEER) M
TR

Obtaining an understanding of management’s process
of assessing the impairment including the use of
provision matrix;

FREAONMPRBELIER BABEHE R  HEES
MEBARLERLHLER  HEBEREREER
REBEFEREANESNAMEEETHERH
Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix and
individual assessment, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales agreements, sales invoices and historical
settlement record of debtors;
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Key audit matter

EfMzERnflRE@RERSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERE()VREREER EER T ENEBANBG
EENXLABMLERE  SARHEUBERANELTA
ETOE  RmEARKESRENTEREERE A
BREEREZBZEHAERNELTEHBREEESRE -
HEBRXDEREBYERR Z BRI ERFHANEEMRE
ZELRRHE  RBABEERMEL AR R)VBREER
A B8 Bl BR e 15 050 B R &R 45 AR oL B AR X 2% 1 it 5t — Rl e
ERAIRRREHAMEEE KK WEEEERRIEER
BEREAIEIEAN - 4 T8 R A B M B R SR B 12 ) (8 5l &S
The management of the Group estimates the amount of
ECL of (i) trade receivables based on provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns after considering historical default rates and
forward-looking information of respective debtors, except
for debtors with credit-impaired evidence which assess
expected credit loss on individual basis. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information; and (i) amounts due from
an associate and amounts due from other related parties
based on individual ageing profile and internal credit risk
grading of debtors to determine whether there s
significant increase in credit risk or credit impaired so as
to project the individual loss rate adjusted with forward-
looking information.

TEHEEEBBZFIBEHN R SRR 47 -
Details of the ECL are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

e THEEREBEN _ZT_=Ft+_A=+—HZE
WEZRACEEEREBSARANEERAE - 8
REBERBBERTHREKEZREASEETRLER
RMEEYE  URERNREEERESERINTERER
EEHE(W2EZBRTENERAELEER) :
Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2023, including the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
trade debtors into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied in each category in the provision matrix (with
reference to historical default rates and forward-
looking information);

s THEEEGETR_T-_=F+t-A=t—Hz—
BIRE S RN R R KR E MR T R E B R ER T
RAENEERHE B SSEETERUREZE
ERBERCRERN KEZFEBHAZEWFIA
EARLREERENEEERERBRNGEN &
BERPEEBR G TTERREINBEBERR 22
2
Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance of amounts due
from an associate and amounts due from other
related parties as at 31 December 2023, including
the appropriateness of the Group’s determination of
whether the debtors have significant increase in
credit risk, whether the receivables from these
debtors are credit-impaired and reasonableness of
significant assumptions, checking to estimation
methodology of ECL and checking the parameters to
external data sources;

e WRAETEEFNEZHEHCESENERIL K
Testing the accuracy of management’s calculation of
the expected credit losses; and

. FHE BB E B MERW 47 2 BB EEBEN G2
BEEIE -
Evaluating the disclosures regarding the ECL
assessment in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REREPLREHBRSNREZARBRCERTXBTESEITRERA(REXK]) AESEEHE ZBERT
fl

Impairment assessment of goodwill allocated to the operating fitness centres and providing consultation
services for fitness and health activities and operating the franchise business for royalty fee income
("Fitness business”)

HRNERE ZHEBRERY S RERAW - MHMKY RAEEIE TRAEXRB2AERENLGIETFRE

Bl EB BB RENHREABREZSIE - Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill goodwill allocated to the Fitness business included:

allocated to Fitness business as a key audit matter due to

the complexity and significant judgments involved in the e FHEBYEEM AR I REENE

management’s assessment process. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuers;

WU A IS MR TS - 20 22FTHE - ZAEBR =T

E=4 = fl=g—F ZEEETEZ’W%BS 426,000/87TC ° Loz BEEZHENERTEFGHENRRRESR

ErmEREREERERFGME IR ECReELSE EREAEBE AXFURREREER KRR (B
([ReEEEM]) 2 KE S - BRERE REHEAREERX)

As disclosed in notes 4, 20 and 22 to the consolidated Evaluating the assumptions underpinning the
financial statements, the carrying amount of such discounted cash flow models, including growth rates,
goodwill, was approximately HK$138,426,000 as at 31 budgeted sales and operating expenses through
December 2023. Determining impairment of goodwill assessing the reasonableness of forecasted future
required the management’s estimation of the recoverable cash flows by reference to the latest business plan of
amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU") to which the the Group;

goodwill has been allocated.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rt ReELENAINE e (EREEEREBE Y
HEMBYTECREENEE) R FRAZEFERRE
BUHRE ReEFEU v REHERAREERERE
AREMEBAZRERARBEER - HEBROFEERE
B2 REEBRRYREXNE R A G R -

In estimating the recoverable amount of the CGU which
management determined based on value in use
calculation with assistance from independent valuers, key
assumptions used include discount rates, growth rates of
budgeted sales and operating expenses and their related
cash inflows and outflows patterns for the CGU.
Significant management judgments and estimates are
required to conclude whether there is impairment loss of
goodwill need to recognise.

BB ISBUR MECESURE T - FIAEERR
BENARABCURXETAE
Assessing the reasonableness of the discount rates
applied in determining the value in use by
benchmarking against market data;

BRAKEARKRREREEARNFEERERERLR
WTHERMEREZZNRE  FHBARKESRE
BERBEE &

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the forecasted
future cash flows by comparing them to the actual
results in the current year on a sample basis and
understanding the causes of any significant variances;
and

AR A SRR T 22 B FE 5 X BB R ER
HKE -

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of goodwill of Fitness business in note 22
to the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process. The audit committee of the
Company (“Audit Committee”) assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.



EZEFEREEBR AT KONTAFARMA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

B ZBERE

- +

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

E BERREFBBZIEET - RFPREDR
%Eﬁ$ﬁﬁwé%$ﬁ§2$%ﬁﬁé
C AMEKEREZEE - RIS EZEED
BEPRAZEFFIE  RIDEBRER T A
BRGEHRELARBEE  EBRFRZ
ERT  EAAEBAHERMBRETEEX
FEMEKRZ AEBERBEEBEELZR
TN AT EELFER TERS T
BBRER

|\_—,_ =0

BERLGERS
e -4d-]

STENEBRERA R

mER
HEFEZRITPO5309

oo = e Bl e

4

From the matters communicated with the directors of the Company,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practising Certificate Number P0O5309

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

—E-=F - s
2023 2022
B 5 FET T T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
HREREER Continuing operations
A Revenue 5 809,107 894,062
SHE KRG A A Cost of sales and services (337,815) (387,841)
EA Gross profit 471,292 506,221
H U A Other income 7 24,469 37,928
HAth Uy 28 &2 B5 18 Other gains and losses 8 111,162 4,907
BHIEEEEENETZ  Impairment losses under expected credit
EEE - IR ED &5 loss model, net of reversal 9 (72,350) (55,718)
DEREEER Distribution and selling expenses (429,469) (443,355)
1T E A Administrative expenses (113,023) (115,331)
Hib &R Other expenses (20,750) (29,110)
EEEID N Finance costs 10 (15,250) (23,278)
B 5 Al B 18 Loss before taxation (43,919) (117,736)
I Taxation 12 (17,196) 7,992
SEICEEFARNFERE  Loss for the year from continuing
operations 13 (61,115) (109,744)
ERIEREEL Discontinued operation
B S EE ARG Profit for the period from discontinued
operation 14 — 56,942
REEEE Loss for the year (61,115) (52,802)
Hh2EXH : Other comprehensive expense:
GEET @B HEEEm S Item that will not be reclassified
ZIHEA - subsequently to profit or loss:
HEFEBELZEN  Exchange difference arising on
=% translation to presentation currency (11,936) (55,991)
BEE T BEEFT P SEE 825k Item that may be reclassified subsequently
ZIHEE - to profit or loss:
HEEBINERELEZIEN  Exchange difference arising on
=& translation of foreign operations (4,585) (2,114)

133
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZZ-_=F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023 +
BT =5 OE i e
2023 2022
FoxT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEEMEESZ L Other comprehensive expense for the year,
kR IR net of tax (16,521) (58,105)
AFEEEAEL LA Total comprehensive expense for the year (77,636) (110,907)
NEEBEEMLT Loss for the year attributable to:
ZAN/NE )35 Owners of the Company
— REFERLEER — from continuing operations (28,843) (84,878)
— REBRIEEEED — from discontinued operation — 43,332
(28,843) (41,546)
FEVERR R Non-controlling interests
— REFEREER — from continuing operations (32,272) (24,866)
— REERIEEEER — from discontinued operation — 13,610
(32,272) (11,256)

REEZEE Loss for the year (61,115) (52,802)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

BT =5 et T e
2023 2022
B 5 FHET T T
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
RNEERAZ A Total comprehensive expense for the year
BT attributable to:
e NG & — Owners of the Company (43,818) (90,911)
— TR — Non-controlling interests (33,818) (19,996)
(77,636) (110,907)
AL AL
Bk (B5#E) &2F (Loss) earnings per share 15 HK cent HK cent
YN Basic
— REFELEER — from continuing operations (0.52) (1.52)
— REBRIEEED — from discontinued operation — 0.78

(0.52) (0.74)
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RZZ=Z=F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2023
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—E-=F oo B o
2023 2022
B 5 FET T T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
W - WER&RE Property, plant and equipment 17 240,196 382,158
FREAE Right-of-use assets 18 334,214 419,007
KEME Investment properties 19 35,424 41,911
EES Goodwill 20 253,418 301,257
BYEE Intangible assets 2 249,630 267,902
R—HEBE R = Interest in an associate 23 — —
— B E R RIRK Amounts due from an associate 49 12,835 —
BT IEE E Deferred tax assets 39 160 162
Hekse Rental deposits 11,805 17,652
B HK AR Contract costs 26 1,896 892
1,139,578 1,430,941
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 24 98,266 725
FEWE 5 IR Trade receivables 25 106,518 123,644
BRI Contract costs 26 6,361 5,536
HMEUHRIE ke Rk Other receivables, deposits and
TE T 3R IE prepayments 27 45,668 73,114
HMig& Other investments 28 10,000 20,000
—EFR M ER A RIRK Amount due from an intermediate holding
company 49 9,238 1,021
— B & RRIRK Amounts due from an associate 49 132,346 139,222
Hith BEEE 5 AR Amounts due from other related parties 50(d) 101,701 92,634
RekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 29 77,659 122,595
587,757 689,502
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZZ=F+=FA=+—H At 31 December 2023

—E-=5F i T o
2023 2022
Mo aE FET FET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEE Current liabilities
FERTE 5 I8 Trade payables 30 6,674 21,398
HiEMFREREWIEZS  Other payables and deposits received 31 99,592 133,084
R B Ath BEESE 5 5RIE Amounts due to other related parties 50(d) 7,522 25,280
MIEAE Tax liabilities 36,321 29,677
—FRHEBZRITEE Bank borrowings due within one year 32 39,546 158,772
PEIE U A Deferred income 33 218 229
BRAEE Contract liabilities 34 127,593 72,467
HEAE Lease liabilities 41 66,134 63,808
383,600 504,707
MEBEEFE Net current assets 204,157 184,795
BEERARBERS Total assets less current liabilities 1,343,735 1,615,736
B #E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 35 11,177 11,177
A% 17 3 (8 B 15k Share premium and reserves 38 1,046,112 1,089,930
R EIRRER B G 2 Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 1,057,289 1,101,107
FEPE AR 2 Non-controlling interests 4,657 55,174
EREE Total equity 1,061,946 1,156,281
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

WMZZE==%+=HF=+—H At 31 December 2023 +
—E-=5F o B i
2023 2022
M aE FET FAT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities

—FRIBRITEE Bank borrowings due after one year 32 12,801 103,153
R IR Deferred taxation 39 40,434 55,143
1B R AN B Provision for reinstatement cost 40 12,230 13,336
EIEWA Deferred income 33 982 22,834
HEAR Lease liabilities 41 215,342 264,989
281,789 459,455
1,343,735 1,615,736

FI133BEFI3BELEEVBRERS The consolidated financial statements on pages 133 to 303 were
“WNEZA-t N \BESEeHEREET approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

T OUWHTINEERERESE March 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:
H¥E BEX

Bai Pingyan Jiang Chaowen
BFE 3

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

RRERREMR
Attributable to the Owners of the Company
AR %D
AERA
BE  RHEE By EXRE HARE EARE  HbEE  RBET BE FERERE BN
Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award  Translation Special Capital Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium scheme reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
FhET FhL FiEL FhET FhL FiEL FET FAL FiEL FET ThL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(F5£38(0) (B 3E38(i)
(note 38() (note 38(i))
R=Z-=%-A-H At 1 January 2022 1MA77 1,523,949 (4,854) 18,978 (392,735) 28,457 (87,489) 94535 1,192,018 145,766 1,337,784
TEEER Loss for the year s 5 & g i¥ et = (41546)  (41546)  (11,256)  (52,802)
REREBRE (X H) : Other comprehensive expense for the year.
— RARZIEBELVERER — Exchange difference arising on
translation to presentation currency = = = (47,946) = = = = (47,946) (8,045) (55,991)
— RRENRBEECERER — Exchange difference arising on
translation of foreign operations = — = (1,419) = = = = (1,419) (695) (2,114)
AERREXHEE Total comprehensive expense for the year — = - (49365 = = —  (15%) (90911  (199%)  (110907)
HENE R (F1542() Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42(a)) ¥ o £ i = = e - - (70,5%)  (70,59%)
WZZ-Z§+-A=+-R At 31 December 2022 1MA77 1,523,949 (4,854) (30,387)  (392,735) 28,457 (87,489) 52,989 1,101,107 55174 1,156,281
KRARREE
Attributable to the Owners of the Company
AROZR
FHEEZ
K BRHEE Rt EXERE  BHEE  AARGE  HbRE  REER 8% FoREE  EREE
Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award  Translation Special Capital Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium scheme reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
FiEn FiEn Fin FiEn FiEn Fin FiEn FiEn Fin FiEn FiEn
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
(Hi&E38(0)) (& 38(ii))
(note 38(i)) (note 38(i)
WNoE-=f-A-8 At 1 January 2023 WA 1523949 (4856) (0387 (32735 28457 (87489) 5989 1001107 55174 1156281
KEEER Loss for the year = - - - - - - (883)  (8843)  (2272)  (61119)
REREMZERL Other comprehensive expense for the year:
— HRRSJIKKEEZER AR — Exchange difference arising on translation
to presentation currency = = = (11,441) = = = = (11,441) (495) (11,936)
— RRBNEBELZEREE — Bxchange difference arising on translation
of foreign operations = = = (3,534) = = = = (3,534) (1,051) (4,585)
TEERERLEE Total comprehensive expense for the year = = = (14,975) = = = (28,843) (43,818) (33.818) (77,636)
HERBAR (M) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42(c)) - - - - - - - - - (16,699) (16,699)
=g S At 31 December 2023 1,177 1,523,949 (4,854) (45,362) (392,735) 28,457 (87,489) 24146 1,057,289 4,657 1,061,946
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HEZZ-_=F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023 +
—E-=F oo B o
2023 2022
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEXK OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REFELEEB ZBRTBIAT  Loss before taxation from continuing operations

B8 (43,919) (117,736)
REDKRIEEESER 2B Profit before taxation from discontinued

Al g A operation — 80,697

Br Fi R ES 18 Loss before taxation (43,919) (37,039)
HTHIEE B < R - Adjustments for:
B RITE Amortisation and depreciation 107,164 130,745
CREEREBERSE MK Impairment losses on financial assets, net of

BoeHE reversal 72,350 56,112
HERNBAR ke Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (110,491) (24,035)
8T #8 Bh K 475 B Government grant and subsidy (220) (230)
A& AN Finance costs 15,250 23,779
F B U A Interest income (3,502) (5,221)
HERMBEYE - BEK#Z  Net loss on disposal and write off of property,

2 BEFE plant and equipment 722 4,941
e NEFNTE2WE  Gain on lease modification and reassessment (352) (3,337)
M m A E 2 B 1R 5 Net loss on write off of intangible assets 5,543 —
EYMEE 2 AR FERS Fair value gain on biological assets — (4,927)

FEEBEEEHSER COVID-19-related rent concessions — (6,885)
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—E-=F e
2023 2022
FHET T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
LEESEHM 2L EES  Operating cash inflow before movements in
mA working capital 42,545 133,903
FEEm Increase in inventories (6,169) (9,458)
H Y& EE M Increase in biological assets — (49)
FEUE 5 FRIEIE N Increase in trade receivables (19,945) (92,972)
HEWFIE - %4 KFER  Decrease (increase) in other receivables, deposits
FRIE R A (BB 0) and prepayments 41,109 (17,545)
& KR A I8 Increase in contract costs (1,647) (453)
— FEI Bt & 0 ) R SR3E N Increase in amounts due from an associate (39,917) (37,938)
SHBaEE D) Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities 54,298 (11,732)
FET B 5 R IE R A Decrease in trade payables (806) (3,421)
HEMRBEREKEZS (Decrease) increase in other payables and deposits
OR4>) 1800 received (11,050) 51,745
iR JE U A 38 A0 Increase in deferred income — 10,129
BIR KA B AR Decrease in provision for reinstatement cost (1,414) (940)
CEELECZES Cash generated from operations 57,004 21,269
BT FTER Income tax paid (19,885) (23,434)
EEXKES (FTHA) ZE€ NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN)
HEE OPERATING ACTIVITIES 37,119 (2,165)
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—E-=F (L o
2023 2022
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
REXK INVESTING ACTIVITIES
LEME  BEREEZ Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
FriS 58 equipment 286 1,405
BEWE - BEKIKE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (23,923) (51,679)
e FEmiise Release of rental deposits 1,554 7,735
RNEBTWEE Addition of intangible assets (272) —
BERT—EBEQA Loans to an associate (25,420) —
— B R RIERK Repayment from an associate — 4,300
BEHMEE Purchase of other investments (35,000) (20,000)
BRI A A% & 2 FT1S 3R Proceeds from redemption of other investments 45,000 16,000
2 BR PR I $R1T 1 5K Release of restricted bank deposits — 6,205
HENBARESEZ Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
RemAFE (Fizkd2) (note 42) 179,842 154,205
2 UF B Interest received 2,076 3,360
REXEBEEZHLZE NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 144,143 121,531
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2023 2022
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
& FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EAFLE Interest paid (16,436) (26,038)
ERITEE New bank borrowings raised 28,883 333,100
BREITEE Repayments of bank borrowings (129,522) (270,642)
EEHEaBEZAEIS Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities (65,139) (64,640)
RE—FHRNERAT ZEF Advance from an intermediate holding company 1,800 15,181
m—EFRMZERDRER Repayment to an intermediate holding company (1,805) (17,513)
2k B H h BA B 77 2R Advance from other related parties — 748
m) H fth B e 5 12 K Repayment to other related parties (16,593) (107,528)
RMEXBFARSFHR NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (198,812) (137,332)
HERBSZEBEYRAPFEE  NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (17,550) (17,966)
FzRERRLEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 122,595 167,962
fEREE) 8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (27.386) (27,401)
ERZESREASEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 77,659 2298595
Bn Represented by
RITHEBERE Bank balances and cash 77,659 122,595
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HEZZ-=F+="A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2023 +
1. —HR&EH

HEREREBAR AR ([AAA])RE
FEeBEARENRERTE(—AAN—
FERPIE3ME BIERARBF)NR_Z
——E=fA -+ BAEMSHETMK
YR—EEREERAR - AR 2R
MEZZE——F— A+ N\BRBRAEEH
ARGBERAR ([BRFT]) Eh e &
FTERRATHEBEEHEREGR AT
(—HREBRLZEEEMASZZAA
BRAR)) - EmKRETHEBABRE
ARZME ([FE]) LFEEARBATR
EEEEEBEELZE T - A A M
EEEFEEEMI 2 MU AFRA
RIERANEE -

ARmREMBRR (RERIAEE])
TERFETHRRENEERTE &
S 5 L KR S 2 B A6 R o R AR
NERERFEBEARSHAEE W
A o I EVARTIREE - AEE B
FRENHEEREMEBEM HR L
—FEDRLE - ARAA—RREER
DA EMBAR 2 T EXBEINMEE
54 -

REMBHRERAET (BT 25 -8
MRARBZNEEBARB (AR
%)) RRRARRREERAR/ETLES
BAKBZHBERZ DM

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kontafarma China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 21 March 2011 under the Companies
Law, Chapter. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 January 2012. Its
substantial shareholder is China Health Management
Investment Limited, a private limited company which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate beneficial
owner is State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Shan Xi Provincial Government* (LL78& AR
BREEEEEBEELZE®) of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the "Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of prescription drugs in the PRC and the operation
of fitness centres and provision of consultation services for
fitness and health activities and operating of the franchise
business for royalty fee income. The Group was also engaged
in the manufacturing and sales of laboratory related products
which was discontinued in prior year as disclosed in note 14.
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 54.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"”) which is different from the functional
currency of the Company, Renminbi (“RMB”), as the directors
of the Company consider that HK$ will facilitate analysis of
the financial information of the Group.
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2.

HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform

— Pillar Two model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. FERAHIRKEITERBNKR

HEA ([ HFRMBHREZER D)

(&)

RS 5 B 38 | AR R 2 i RT IR AR A4S
R EBME®REER (&)

ERESE S RREBTER
R AIEI A S BRI A B BE
CREINE

AEBNAFEEREAZIER - &
SR BB VR B L ZE5/ ) &1E
RIAERGFHBRER I BREES
AR —FANMMARR - HERER
MBEHBRERAEMEN —HFEE - 251K
REMANGEEHREZEBRAVBR
RO BEAERBZEVERKPIE
HZRE @ ARG BRRERNBERX -

SAE T RE - BV S R ROR L T E
K BEREERSME  EhFES
B BHERANDTEEA - A
T AIEHAREARS - BER
BRABZEHEREANASNES
Ko - HERREREHEAGHE
REN  AHENTEREEAGHE
HER o

BEMBRELENEBRAEF 2RI E
AMELAITEHRE]D TEE
5] DARLER — BB a0l A% [ 0 2 0A 5T
BEREREIRARSHABREER
HEBR RS ERRNERHENB
BEREEBEKX - BERHECEINEE
BRRER -

& FR 2% & 5T 0 8 4 7K 52 [ &9 B 795 0 K%
REELEATE BXETHEAMK
BRI A KB T BERAEKE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “Significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how
an entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to
accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments narrow the scope of the
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets in paragraph 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy retrospectively to leasing
transactions that occurred on or after 1 January 2022; the
Group also, as at 1 January 2022, recognised a deferred tax
asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible
and taxable temporary difference associated with right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial position and performance.
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2. EAFITIRKETESBMESH 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
SER ([HFBMBEHREZAER]) TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
] STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

~—~~
~

EEMAEERERZERBMER Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
HEBMEFT AR effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to

REE Y EIZFEA T 52 B E MR
EE HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

M2 BERPBRELENEITA :

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and

EFe:TEE1R BAEEIEA Amendments to HKAS 1
H)

N MELIEREB

NREAZE related amendments to
FS5R(ZF Hong Kong Interpretation 5
—EE)ZM (2020)!
BIEEI A
BB ENFE 15 MERED Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
(EFIEN EMBBEE Covenants'
BEEMBmEEL SEEHED Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
FE16EET A HEBE Leaseback!
BB EANETR HEPRE Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance

RERBYB]RE ZHE HKFRS 7
ERFTREFT A
FRGERNE21 RSN

Arrangements’

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

SRAERT A

BEANBREER KEEHEHE Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
FI0RRBED /N 1Y and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
sTAERIZE 2858 AERAZE Associate or Joint Venture?
(EHEN ZEBEHEN

B’A3

! RZZTZNFE—A—HHZUER : Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

a2 F R EAR AR 1 January 2024

2 R-ZE_RF—HA—-—BHUERA 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
i6 2 F 2 EAE A B 1 January 2025

2 REFEBHIAERBZFE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
B A K to be determined

bR XAt 2 & B B 5 S EE ANE AT A
Sh RRBEERY - BRAMAEMLE
78 B 7 s E RME R AN A 576 2K A
SHHROMBRRBREATE -

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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2.

HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments"”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

3 clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments, these
terms do not affect its classification as current or
non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments. Presentation.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that the
classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with
which an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Covenants which are required to comply with
only after the reporting period do not affect whether that
right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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HEZZ-_=F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023 +

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could
become repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period, if an entity classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of
applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 Amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply
the 2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at
31 December 2023, and the related terms and conditions
stipulated in the agreements between the Group and the
relevant lenders, the application of the 2020 and 2022
Amendments will not result in reclassification of the Group’s
liabilities.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The amendments add a disclosure objective to HKAS 7 Cash
flow statements stating that an entity is required to disclose
information about its supplier finance arrangements that
enables users of financial statements to assess the effects of
those arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows. In
addition, HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was
amended to add supplier finance arrangements as an example
with in the requirements to disclose information about an
entity’s exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.

The term “supplier finance arrangements” is not defined.
Instead, the amendments describe the characteristics of an
arrangement for which an entity would be required to provide
the information.

To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to
disclose in aggregate for its supplier finance arrangements:

The terms and conditions of the arrangements;

o The carrying amount and associated line items presented
in the entity’s statement of financial position, of the
liabilities that are part of the arrangements, and the
non-cash changes in the carrying amounts of these
financial liabilities;

° The carrying amount, and associated line items for which
the suppliers have already received payment from the
finance providers;

o Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial
liabilities that are part of a supplier finance arrangement
and comparable trade payables that are not part of a
supplier finance arrangement; and liquidity risk
information.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements (Continued)

The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for
the first annual reporting period in which an entity applies the
amendments, are applicable for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is
permitted.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group but may affect the disclosures of liabilities, cash
flows and the Group'’s exposure to liquidity risk related to the
supplier finance arrangements entered into by the Group. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s
future consolidated financial statements.
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HEZZ=-=F+="A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, at the end of each reporting
period as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or
a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics of
inputs, as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash generating units (“CGUs") (or
groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of CGU). Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent period.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the
portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is described below.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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BEAETHEER (8) 3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group
uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

— Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

— Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

— Step 3: Determine the transaction price

— Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

— Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the
contract cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange
for the goods or services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of
low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

3 an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related
rent concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-use
assets that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”. If an right-of-use
asset becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, the
carrying amount at the date of change in use is transferred to
investment property.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term upon exercising purchase
options, the carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use asset
is transferred to property, plant and equipment.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

HE (&) Leases (Continued)
AEBEEREBEA (&) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
HESE Lease liabilities
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At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
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incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

3 the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for
a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

HE (&) Leases (Continued)
AEBEEREBEA (&) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
HESH (& Lease modifications (Continued)
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For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less
any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use asset.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
structures owned by the Group and held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose, and other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets, other than construction in progress, less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, contract costs and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives and
contract costs to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.
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INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for the CGU or group
of CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the CGU or group of
CGUs.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other assets
related to the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable
standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised
as contract costs is recognised to the extent the carrying
amounts exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive in exchange for related goods or
services less the costs which relate directly to providing those
goods or services that have not been recognised as expenses.
The assets capitalised as contract costs are then included in
the carrying amount of the CGU to which they belong for the
purpose of evaluating impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, contract costs and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of CGU. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@  cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment
or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as
short-term borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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HEZZ=-=F+="A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
difference. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
interests in associates except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, (i) the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$); and (i) the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations denominated in RMB are also translated
into HK$, using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate). The accumulated exchange
differences arising from translation into presentation currency
will not be recycled to profit and loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group's net assets in Singapore Dollars and Renminbi to the
Group’s presentation currency (i.e. HK$) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in
the translation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently,

Government grants are not recognised until there s
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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HEZZ=-=F+="A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund and state-managed
retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under the
plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan.

Short term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as expenses unless other
HKFRSs requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their
original condition, as required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets, estimates are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding;

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, amounts due from
an associate, intermediate holding companies or other related
parties, restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; or
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(0]

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, and forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

income is

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, amounts due
from other related parties and amount due from an
associate where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets
(Continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial asset, after
reducing gross carrying amount that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present value
of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial assets and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables, other
payables and deposit received, amounts due to other related
parties and bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group applies judgment to determine the lease term for
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal
option, specifically, the leases relating to offices and fitness
centres. The assessment of whether the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise renewal options impacts the lease term,
which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets recognised. Re-assessment is performed
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of lessee and that affects the assessment.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Determination of lease term of contracts with renewal
options (Continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic
incentives/penalties for exercising or not exercising the
options. Factors considered include:

o contractual terms and conditions for the optional periods
compared with market rates (e.g. whether the amount
of payments in the optional periods is below the market
rates);

o the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken by
Group; and

° costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g. relocation
costs, costs of identifying another underlying asset
suitable for the Group’s needs).

Method of measuring progress for performance
obligation satisfied over-time

Under HKFRS 15, revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised by a single method for each performance
obligation satisfied over time and the method should be
applied consistently to similar performance obligations in
similar circumstances. The Group has considered that the
output method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of services transferred to the
customers to date relative to the remaining services promised
under the contract, would faithfully depict the Group’s
performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. Accordingly, revenue recognised from provision of
membership packages in fitness centres is based on output
method.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, amounts due from
an associate and amounts due from other related parties

Except for debtors become credit-impaired which assess
expected credit losses on individual basis, the Group uses
provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade receivables. The
provision rates and matrix are based on the Group’s historical
default rates from debtors with similar loss patterns taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The Group assesses ECL for amounts due from an associate
and amounts due from other related parties by taking
reference to individual ageing profile and internal credit rating
of respective debtors to determine whether there is significant
increase in credit risk and whether credit impaired so as to
project the individual loss rate. At every reporting date, these
loss rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the Group's trade receivables, amounts due
from an associate and amounts due from other related parties
are set out in notes 25, 49 and 50(d) respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, amounts due from
an associate and amounts due from other related parties
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$106,518,000 (2022: HK$123,644,000) (net
of credit losses of HK$2,856,000 (2022: HK$3,270,000).
Details of the allowance for credit losses are set out in note
47.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of amounts
due from an associate is HK$145,181,000 (2022:
HK$139,222,000) (net of credit losses of HK$135,784,000
(2022: HK$72,120,000). The carrying amount of amounts due
from other related parties are HK$101,701,000 (2022:
HK$92,634,000) (net of credit losses of HK$32,552,000 (2022:
HK$21,003,000)). Details of the allowance for credit losses are
set out in note 47.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill, trademark and franchise
agreement are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs to which goodwill,
trademark and franchise agreement have been allocated,
which is the higher of value in use or fair value less costs of
disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the present value of the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGUs containing goodwill, trademark and
franchise agreement using suitable discount rates, growth
rates for budgeted revenue and operating expenses and
related cash inflows and outflows patterns. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which results in downward revision of
growth rates for budgeted revenue or upward revision of
discount rates or budgeted operating expenses, or change in
related cash inflows or outflows patterns, an impairment loss
may arise. Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount
rates are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties
due to uncertainty on how the volatility or disruptions in
energy, financial, foreign currency or commodity markets may
progress and evolve. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are set out in note 22.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of goodwill,
trademark and franchise agreement are approximately
HK$253,418,000, HK$92,876,000 and HK$152,456,000.
(2022: HK$301,257,000, HK$92,876,000 ane
HK$158,966,000) respectively. Details of the impairment of
goodwill, trademark and franchise agreement are disclosed in
notes 21 and 22.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycle. Management reassesses the estimations at end
of each reporting period.
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52 A 5. REVENUE
(A) REEFESHZWABN (A) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers
REEAEEERHBKEEBR An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from
B[RAZDTHET : continuing operations is as follows:
BEREEK Continuing operations
it Sy -3 S 114
2023 2022
BHEL BEEK @t BEXK Ba%% ECH
Pharmaceutical Fitness Pharmaceutical Fitness
business business Total business business Total
TET THr THERT THL FHT THL
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000

EARKELELAE15KHE  Revenue from contracts with
ANREEFEHZHA customers within the scope of
HKFRS 15
RIZERIRBEMAS Disaggregated by major products
or services lines

HEREERNE Manufacture and sales of
prescription drugs 607,131 - 607,131 722,903 i 722,903
MERFPLRRBRESA  Operation of fitness centres and
BB ARE provision of consultation services
for fitness and health activities
— RLATIGRRE — personal training classes = 65,982 65,982 = 58,380 58,380
— SHEZ — membership packages - 96,824 96,824 — 74,976 74,976
BREAIRERREL Royalty fee income in relation to
BIFERRA fitness and health activities = 39,170 39,170 = 37,803 37,803
ik Total 607,131 201,976 809,107 722,903 171,159 894,062
[ON:=4:1 Timing of revenue recognition
F-BEY Point in time 607,131 65,982 673,113 722,903 58,380 781,283
RERS Over time = 135,994 135,994 = 112,779 112,779
ok Total 607,131 201,976 809,107 722,903 171,159 894,062
HETE Geographical markets
FE A Mainland China 592,366 — 592,366 714,922 For 714,922
Gl Singapore - 162,806 162,806 — 133,356 133,356
ag Taiwan — 39,170 39,170 974 37,803 38,777
Hity Others 14,765 = 14,765 7,007 = 7,007

k] Total 607,131 201,976 809,107 722,903 171,159 894,062
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REVENUE (CONTINUED)

For manufacture and sales of prescription drugs, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been delivered to the
designated location (delivery). The normal credit period
is 30 to 180 days upon delivery. The Group requires
certain customers to provide upfront deposits.

For provision of personal training classes in fitness
centres, revenue is recognised at point in time when the
customers obtain the services. For provision of
membership packages in fitness centres, revenue is
recognised over time when the control of the services
have been transferred to the customers. Trade
receivables mainly represent receivables from financial
institutions in relation to the payment settled through
using credit cards by individual customers of which the
settlement is normally 15 days from transaction date.
Transaction price is always received in advance in full for
prepaid membership packages or personal training
classes and this will give rise to contract liabilities in
which revenue has not been recognised. Royalty fee
income in relation to fitness and health activities is
recognised over time when the performance obligation
has been satisfied.
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HE=Z=_=F+="A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(C) Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

—EC-=F ok

2023 2022

FHET FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

—F R Within one year 110,466 90,608
—F L FETREBBERSE  More than one year but not more

than two years 25,145 15,004
MEAEBTEBBEAF  More than two years but not more

than five years 111 932

135,722 106,544
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive of the Company,
being the chief operation decision maker (the “CODM"), for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on business units. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group disposed of its interests in SPF
(Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (HTE & (db5) £ B R
~A]) (“SPF”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, SPF (Suzhou)
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (H7 B & (BRM) £EHHMTER A F))
(collectively, the “SPF Group”) (note 14), subsidiaries in the
pharmaceutical business segment which was presented as
“discontinued operation”. The Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure which resulted in changes to the
composition of its reportable segments. The following segment
information of the Group’s business units does not include the
discontinued operation.

The Directors have chosen to organise the Group around
differences in products and services. The Group is principally
engaged in pharmaceutical and fitness business.

. Pharmaceutical business — manufacture and sales of
prescription drugs.

° Fitness business — operate fitness centres and provide
consultation services for fitness and health activities and
operate the franchise business for royalty fee income.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products or services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.
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BE R (%) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DEBARESE (i) Segment revenue and results
AR R IR Al 2 MANLL & 5 JE AR The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
SERBELCEEBNRAMES results from continuing operations by reportable and
B DA o operating segments.
SRR Continuing operations:
BEEY REEE bl
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Total
—®¥-=F _"T__F ZR-=F —_T-_—F ZR-=F —T-__F
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
THET FET THER FHET THER FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IINRBE DA Segment revenue from
external customers 607,131 722,903 201,976 171,159 809,107 894,062
DEELE Segment results 69,607 8349  (81,470) (101,310)  (11,863) (92,961)
KA EERA  Unallocated corporate
income 2,907 4,708
KA EERT Unallocated corporate
expenses (34,963) (29,483)
BRI E R Loss before taxation 43,919)  (117,736)

RED RS SRR M 3 AT
MAREOSTBRER - 23
RERADRERXRLEERRAMA
AT B @7 BB IREN A ) (3R
BMEE) R ASEETEEL
REERSOTT L MEERSD
MR IRFFE R -

SRS _=EEN=8=—
+—A=+—HIFERTESD
BRFEIEHEE o

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned by
(loss from) each segment without allocation of certain
corporate income and expenses. This is the measure
reported to the CODM of the Group for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

There was no inter-segment sales during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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6. DEMER(F) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) ?7HEERERE (ii) Segment assets and liabilities
AT RIZAIZ2MME LD FE A The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
SENEERBEND liabilities by reportable and operating segments:
SRR Continuing operations:
BEEK REEK ok
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Total
=== el — 1= = el L= =0 s
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

TER THAT TERT TET TR TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

DEEE Segment assets 782,770 1,117,520 878,749 941,384 1,661,519 2,058,904
ERREEE Deferred tax assets 160 162
AOMOEEE Unallocated corporate assets 65,656 61,377
RREE Consolidated assets 1,727,335 2,120,443
BEEK REEK ok
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Total
SPESEN T SRR T - ST T
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

TERL TR TER TET TER TEL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

DA Segment liabilities 109,656 392,394 467,155 473,616 576811 866,010

BARRE Tax liabilities 36,321 29,677

EEHEAAR Deferred tax liabilities 40,434 55,143

APELEEE Unallocated corporate liabilities 11,823 13,332

LAAE Consolidated liabilities 665389 964,162

MEZEDBRE LN HE SR For the purposes of monitoring segment performance

BRmE : and allocating resources between segments:

. FIBEEEDEREDES . all assets are allocated to operating segments other
ENBEERERIBEERK than deferred tax assets and unallocated corporate
PREREE  REAR/RZE assets as these assets are managed on a group
BERANELEER & basis; and

. FBEBESEEELEHES . all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
HTEERIBEE  RER other than tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and
BHEBERRSELERE unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities
RERZE A RRARNELE are managed on a group basis.

B o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(iii) Other segment information

Continuing operations:

BEEY REXY KAE @it
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Unallocated Total
SeSel —FT--- EESEEHN —T-o - EESEECE —Fo o EESEESHE P f
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
TER T TR TiEx TR THET TER TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SIASFEETAHEESZZ  Amounts included in the
2H measure of segments
results or segment assets:
REFTBEE Addition to non-current
assets* 38,106 46,581 19,337 6,425 19 3427 57,462 56,433
BHENE Amortisation and depreciation 28,828 31,699 75,515 87,728 2,821 2915 107,164 122,382
EHEEEBEABTZHE  Impairment losses under
BE NREDSE expected credit loss
model, net of reversal 11,225 987 51,017 49,738 10,108 4,993 72,350 55,718
FEMR GIABERREMA)  Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales
and services) 1,554 469 = = = = 1,554 469
HERMENE  BEREEZ  Net loss (gain) on disposal
B R FE and write off of property,
plant and equipment 292 (872) 430 5813 = = 722 4,941
HHEEVEEZBRTE Net loss on write off of
intangible assets 5,543 5 = = = = 5,543 o
RENBARz W& Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries (110,491) (3,042) = e = o (110,491) (3,042)
FlEMA Interest income (1,020) (3,642) - = (2,482) (1,537) (3,502) (5,179)
HE X Interest expenses 2,726 8,201 12,006 14,476 518 601 15,250 23,278
EHREFEEEEREENET  Amounts reqularly provided to
FIAR RGN E the CODM but not
incluced in the measure
of segment results:
FiEtiRE% (E%) Income tax expenses (credit) 22,514 (2,423) (5.318) (5,569) — — 17,196 (7,992)
i IRBEETPREEREER * The non-current assets exclude financial assets and

BERAEE

deferred tax assets
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6. DEER (&)

(iv) EBEERF2EH

+

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(iv) Information about major customers

HEFEEAKEHEREER

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

10% B REZFPRWALT - contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group
are as follows:
BELEE
Year ended
—E-=F i L
2023 2022
THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEA Customer A’ 134,537 134,473
= FB! Customer B! 86,072 119,612
y REBHEERK WA L Revenue from Pharmaceutical business
(v) HE&EXR (v) Geographical information

AREE 7 2B P B A K&
Mg - BREAKEERBEEDN
BREREEZMBMNEZS -

The Group’s operations are located in the Mainland
China and Singapore. Information about the Group’s
non-current assets is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.

ERBEE
Non-current assets
—E-=F S s
2023 2022
THET FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH B A Mainland China 434,700 693,490
A3 Singapore 656,625 706,220
BE Hong Kong 23,453 13,417
1,114,778 1,448,127
Wik : ERDEETERIFELRIE Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and

BEENESRTA-

financial instruments.
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7. OTHER INCOME

—E-= i it
2023 2022
FHET FE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEREER Continuing operations
REBRITZFEWA Interest income from banks 1,143 2,657
RE—REFR MR AT ZFE  Interest income from an intermediate
WA holding company — 1,066
KEBT L ARERZ Interest income from loans to an
FEWA associate 1,817 795
REEMTEZFBRA Interest income from other investments 542 661
3,502 5,179
IR #e8 B K2 B Government grant and subsidy
— REH AR (FFFE33) — release from deferred income
(note 33) 220 230
— BRI ST AERE (M) — related to expenses (note i) 5,669 8,009
— BR{EEAERA (M) — related to employment (note ii) 2,064 2,800
FREEEEESES COVID-19-related rent concessions
(Bt =) (note iii) — 6,885
HE WA Rental income 3,680 1,603
AR 75 U A Service income 280 1,044
FETEUWA Sundry income 9,054 2 75
24,469 37,928
B 5 i: CHEERHELEEENRE Note i: The amount represented financial subsidies received for
3 RN £ B 4R £ BB B IR B compensating expenses already incurred or giving
B W B 7528, - WEE M immediate financial support to the Group. There are no
BB AR ERK RS A EIE - unfulfilled conditions or contingencies in relation to the
8 Bh 7 B AR B BURT HERE 2 #E Y grants and the grants were determined at the sole
TBRTE ° discretion of relevant government authorities.
B i R EFRNBNHEER Note ii: Government grant related to employment mainly arose

7N 3% BRI A 4 o A =X N
Fr AL aT &) ([ =X hn Bk
T8l RREE SRR A & ([4552
REFEIEE BB
1,335,000 L (Z T == :
1,568,000/ 7t) ° & # =, o0 %
AT B B RE T E
EEFHEZHRE - XEEE
BERIBR RGBT BB
BRI ABTEMKA] - mIER
DI c B ZE T
EM A AW R IR R E A sk
REIF -

from the Progress Wage Credit Scheme (“PWCS”) and
Job Growth Incentive (“JGI”) introduced by the
Singapore government of approximately HK$1,335,0